
            
 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 

Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Jaime A. Petralanda          Councilman Michael Windrem 
Councilman Billy Bain                 Councilman George V. Lob 
 
Decorum: “Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the City Council, shall be barred 
from further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the 
majority vote of the City Council members present.  In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, 
personal attacks and comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments from the podium.” 
 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, February 9, 2015 – 7:00 p.m. 

City Hall, Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
 
2. Invocation: Councilman Petralanda 
 

Salute to the Flag: Students from Springview Elementary School will lead the audience in 
the Pledge of Allegiance and Salute to the Flag 
 
3. Awards & Presentations:  

 
A) Certificate of Recognition for Tennis Program Director Manny Fabian 
 
B) Officer of the Month for December 2014 and Life Saving Award presented to Officer 

Justin B. Robbins 
 
C) Yard of the Month – February 2015 – Ann and Blake Modesitt – 27 Hunting Lodge 

Drive 
 
D) Presentation by the Miami Springs High School Engineering Club 
 
E) Presentation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for Fiscal Year 

ending September 30, 2014 by Alberni, Caballero and Fierman (CAFR Report Added) 
 

4. Open Forum: Persons wishing to speak on items of general city business, please sign the 
register located on the speaker's stand before the meeting begins. 

 
5. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) January 21, 2015 – Special Meeting 
B) January 26, 2015 – Regular Meeting 

 
6. Reports from Boards & Commissions:  

 
A)  February 2, 2015 – Board of Adjustment – Approval of Actions Taken at their 

Meeting of May 5, 2014, Subject to the 10-day Appeal Period 

REVISED 

gonzaleze
Typewritten Text

gonzaleze
Typewritten Text



7. Public Hearings: None 
  

8. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted)  
 

A) Approval of the City Attorney’s Invoice for January 2015 in the Amount of $13,304.75 
 
B) Recommendation by Golf that Council authorize the issuance of a Purchase Order 

to Sullivan Electric & Pump, Inc., utilizing Miami Dade County Bid #6819-5/17-1, on an “as 
needed basis” in the amount of $5,000.00, for emergency repairs for pump stations at the Golf 
Course as funds were approved in the FY 14/15 budget, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(5) of the 
City Code 

 
C) LETF Purchase - New Radar Equipment 

 
1) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council approve an 

expenditure to Kustom Signals, Inc., using Miami-Dade County Contract Pricing 
#ABCW1200723, of $5,032.00, for four (4) Automobile Falcon HR Moving and Stationary 
radar units, as these funds qualify for expenditure from the Police Law Enforcement Trust 
Fund, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(c) of the City Code 

 
2) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council approve an 

expenditure to Applied Concepts, Inc., as a sole source provider, of $9,250.00, for four (4) 
Motorcycle Stalker Dual-SL radar units, as these funds qualify for expenditure from the 
Police Law Enforcement Trust Fund, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(c) of the City Code 

 
3) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council approve an 

expenditure to Petersons Harley-Davidson, as a sole source provider, of $1,200.00, for 
radar installation/labor, as these funds qualify for expenditure from the Police Law 
Enforcement Trust Fund, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(c) of the City Code 

 
 D) Recommendation by Police Department that Council authorize issuing a purchase 
order to Don Reid Ford, Inc., utilizing Florida Sheriff’s Association Bid Award Announcement #14-
22-0904 in the amount of $26,342.00, for a 2015 Ford Police Interceptor Utility AWD (K8A) 
vehicle, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(5) of the City Code 
 
 E) Recommendation by Police Department that Council approve the execution of a 
two year lease agreement with Peterson’s Harley Davidson of Miami, for four new fully equipped 
police motorcycles, as a sole source provider, in the amount of $2,500 (consists of $48,000 lease 
cost for two years less $45,500 trade in values of the six motorcycles currently owned by the 
City), pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(c) of the City Code 
 
9. Old Business:  
 

A) Appointments to Advisory Boards by the Mayor and Council Members 
 
B) Discussion on the Golf Cart Traffic Study (Memo Added) 
 

10. New Business:  
  
 A) Update to Proposed Fund Balance Designation 
  



B) Recommendation by Public Works that Council authorize the issuance of a 
Purchase Order to Trane, utilizing Miami-Dade County Bid #6046-2/12/2, in the amount of 
$10,420.00 annually (to be paid in quarterly payments of $2,605.00), for inspection and 
maintenance services to the City Hall Trane A/C unit as described in the scope of services 
agreement, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(5) of the City Code 
  
 C) Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs, 
Florida; Authorizing The Issuance Of City Of Miami Springs, Florida Capital Improvement 
Refunding Revenue Note, Series 2015 In The Principal Amount Of Not To Exceed $7,600,000 To 
Finance Certain Capital Improvements; Providing That Such Note Shall Be A Limited Obligation 
Of The City Payable From Pledged Revenues As Provided Herein; Providing For The Rights, 
Securities And Remedies For The Owner Of Such Note; Making Certain Covenants And 
Agreements In Connection Therewith; Designating The Note For The Exception For Certain Tax-
Exempt Obligations Contained In Section 265 Of The Internal Revenue Code Of 1986, As 
Amended; And Providing For An Effective Date. 
 
 D) Recommendation that Council Approve a one year extension of the Facility 
Agreement with Match Point Enterprises and Manny Fabian for Tennis Program 
 
 E) Recommendation that Council Approve a one year Facility Agreement with Miami 
Springs VG Optimist Club for Archery Range Program 
 
 F) Recommendation that Council Approve an Extension of the Agreement with Curtiss 
Mansion Inc. to March 16, 2020 
 
 G) Consideration of the Board of Parks and Parkways Recommendations for the Yard 
of the Month Awards for February, March, and April 2015  
 
 H) Recommendation that Council Approve requested transitional Police staffing 
changes  
 
 I) Request by the Relay for Life event organizers for their annual 12 hour fund-raising 
event to be held on the Circle Saturday, March 7th 
  
11. Other Business: None 

 
12. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 
B) City Manager 
 
C) City Council 

 
13. Adjourn 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
Please visit www.miamisprings-fl.gov for current meeting schedule or follow us on             Twitter @MIAMISPRINGSFL 

******************************************************************************************************* 
Live streaming video of this meeting is available at http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/webcast. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

Anyone wishing to obtain a copy of an agenda item may contact the City Clerk at (305) 805-5006, download the complete agenda packet from 
www.miamisprings-fl.gov or view the materials at City Hall during regular business hours. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
Pursuant to Florida Statute 286.0114, the City Council provides the public with a reasonable opportunity to be heard on all matters. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
If any person decides to appeal any decision of this Board with respect to any matter considered, s/he will need a record of the proceedings and for such 

purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is made (F. S. 286.0105), all of which the City does not provide. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate in this proceeding should contact the 

City Clerk, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 33166.  Telephone: (305) 805-5006, no later than (7) days prior to the proceeding. 
 

******************************************************************************************************* 
Pursuant to Sec. 2-11.1 (S) of the Miami-Dade County Code and Miami Springs Code of Ordinances Chapter 33 - §33-20, all persons, firms or 

corporations employed or retained by a principal who seeks to encourage the passage, defeat, or modifications of (1) ordinance, resolution, action or 
decision of the City Council; (2) any action, decision, recommendation of any City Board or Committee; or (3) any action, decision or recommendation of 
City personnel during the time period of the entire decision-making process on such action, decision or recommendation which will be heard or reviewed 
by the City Council, or a City Board or Committee shall register with the City before engaging in any lobbying activities on forms prepared for this purpose 

and shall state under oath his or her name, business address, the name and business address of each person or entity which has employed said 
registrant to lobby, and the specific issue on which he or she has been employed to lobby.  A copy of the lobbyist registration form is available from the 

Office of the City Clerk. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/webcast
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/


Miami Springs
Police Department

Memorandum

To:

F'rom:

Subject:

Date:

Officer Justin B. Robbins " -

{9*-urrd4:&ag *a'r r /2 s /at'".t-
Armando Gvma$Chief of Police

Offrcer ofthe Month/Life Saving Award

January 23,2015

On 01/11/15, Sergeant Thomas D. Kel1y drated a memorandum which recommends that you
receive the Officer of the Month for the month of December 201.4 and the Life Saving Award.
The memo describes the details of a call when you responded to a residence where an elderly
male was unconscious and not breathing. Due to your life saving efforts, the victim was revived
and successfully transported to the hospital.

The Miami Springs Police Department Awards Committee has concured with Sergeant Kelly's
recommendation, and I agree. You are invited to attend the regularly-scheduled City Council
Meeting on February 9, at7:00 p.m., when this award will be publicly presented to you. You are
invited to bring withyou any family members, friends, or associates to share in this occasion.

I congratulate you for your outstanding performance, and compliment you on your
professionalism. Your actions are a positive reflection on the prote'ssional reputation of the entire
Miami Springs Police Departrnent.

llc

Attachments

cc: City Manager R. Gorland
Captain J. Kahn
Lieutenant R. Walker
Lieutenant J. Mulla
Sergeant T. Kelly
CPO
Personnel File
Bulletin Board



MIAMI SPRINGS POLICE DEPARTMENT

MEMORANDUM

TO:

THRU:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

DATE:

Armando n. Cuzmjn, Chi"f of eolice@

Chain of Command C.
Sergeant Jimmy E. Deal a),

Officer of the Month tlorin/tlon

January 22,2015

The Awards Committee reviewed the nomination submifted for Officer Justin B. Robbins
for the month of December,2014 and the Life Saving Award. The awards committee
concurs that the nomination meets the criteria for the prestigious Officer of the Month and
the Life Saving Award.



MIAMI SPRINGS POLICE DEPARTMENT

MEMORANDUM

TO: ARMANDO GUZMAN, CHIEF OF POLICE

THRU: CHAIN OF COMMAND 
I

FROM: SGT THOMAS D. KELLY

SUBJECT: OFFICER OF THE MONTH NOMINATION . DECEMBER 2014

DATE: JANUARY 11,2015 
{

I would like to take this opportunity to nominate Officer Justin Robbins for Otficer of the

Month, December ,2114:ind to cbmmend Otficer Cheryl Mulet for their life saving etforts

on Sunday December 28,2014, ref MSPD Case #1402141, and MDFD Alarm #4268730.

Ofc. Robbins was dispatched to a residence in the 400 blk of Swan Ave, where a62year
old male was reporteit to be unconscious and not breathing. Ofc. Robbins arrived in less

than a minute, grabbed his medical equipment from the trunk of his patrol vehicle, and

went inside to observe the victim on the floor, blue, and not breathing on his own'

The Fire Department had not yet arrived, so he immediately requested emergency.back

up, and went to work with the bepartmental AED. The instrument detected the victim to

Ob'in V-fib, and directed him to deliver a shock, and begin CPR. Ofc. Robbins did as

directed, beginning chest compressions and rescue breathing. When back-up OJc. Mulet

arrived, the v]ctim [ad already begun to breathe again on his own. When MDFD's Rescue

35 and ALS Hazmat Ladder Sg ariiveO, their personnel took over the rescue etforts. At

this point,
Ofc's Mulet and Robbins, whom are familiar with the victim and his family, were discreetly

able to determine what the victim had been doing prior to going into cardiac arrest.

Note: HIPPA Regulations prohibit me from divulging this info. However, because both

Otficers are very good ut their jobs, and had ton[ ago established a trusting relationihip

with this family,ihL information obtained was instrumental and helpfulto the rescue
personnel to froperly treat, and administer the correct medications needed to complete

ineir tife saving dtforis. The victim was successfully transported to The U_tvf Hospital's ER,

where he made a full recovery. (Continued)

'Vul"r



According to MDFD Rescue 35 personnelthat night, (Lieutenant Eric Hernandez,
FFlMedics Dave Echenique and Contique Wilcot), Ofc. Robbins' quick response and
rescue actions saved the victim's life, and both officers'information about him further
aided them tremendously in the usage of the correct medications to stabilize him for
transport. Besides my request for thg Officer of the Month Award for Otficer Robbins,
I recommend that he also receive A DEpartmental Lifesaving Award.

It is my privilege and honor to be The Afternoon Shift Supervisor, and I commend all of
the Otficers oithe shift who work tirelessly daily to protect the life, limb, and property of
the citizens and visitors in The City of Miami Springs.

Page 2



 
CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION 

 
Presented to 

 

Ann & Blake Modesitt 
 

Of 
 

27 Hunting Lodge Drive 
 

for their home being designated as 
 

“YARD OF THE MONTH” 
FEBRUARY 2015 

 
Presented this 9th day of February, 2015. 

 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 
 

___________________________________ 
                              Zavier M. Garcia 
                                     Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, CMC 

       City Clerk 



 1

ACCOUNTANTS   ADVISORS�

Alberni Caballero & Fierman, LLP 
4649 Ponce de Leon Blvd 
Suite 404 
Coral Gables, FL 33146 
T: 305.662.7272 F: 305.662.4266 

  ACF-CPA.COM 

 

 

 
February 6, 2015 

 
Honorable Mayor, City Council and City Manager 
City of Miami Springs, Florida 

 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Miami Springs, Florida (the “City”), for the fiscal 
year ended September 30, 2014. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our 
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain information related to the planned 
scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated October 2, 2014. 
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting 
policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2014. However, the City did 
implement a new significant accounting standard GASB 65, “Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities”. 
We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the fiscal year for which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper 
period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements 
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The 
most sensitive estimate affecting the financial statements was: 

Management’s estimate of the allowance for uncollectible accounts for accounts receivables is 
based on historical trends.  

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements was: 

The disclosure of the deposits and investments in Note 3 to the financial statements.  

The disclosure of the Curtiss Mansion restoration and redevelopment project in Note 11 to the 
financial statements.  

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 

 



 2 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 
Management has corrected all such misstatements. No misstatements requiring correction were required as a 
result of our audit. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the 
auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated February 6, 2015. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting 
principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that 
may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check 
with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such 
consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition 
to our retention. 

Other Matters 

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain inquiries 
of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the 
information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of 
preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to 
our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the 
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 

This information is intended solely for the use of the City Council and management of the City of Miami Springs, 
Florida, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 

Very truly yours, 

Alberni Caballero & Fierman, LLP 
Alberni Caballero & Fierman, LLP 
Coral Gables, Florida 
 































































































































































































































 
 1 

 
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
 

Special Meeting Minutes 
Monday, January 21, 2015 7:00 p.m. 

 
Council Chambers at City Hall 

201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 7:03 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
 
Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Jaime A. Petralanda 
Councilman Michael Windrem 
Councilman Billy Bain 
Councilman George V. Lob 
 
City Manager Ronald K. Gorland 
Assistant City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso 
City Attorney Jan K. Seiden 
Recreation Director Omar L. Luna 
Professional Services Supervisor Tammy L. Romero 
Assistant City Clerk Elora R. Sakal 
 
2. Invocation: Offered by Councilman Bain 
 

Salute to the Flag: The audience participated. 
 
3. New Business 

  
A)  Presentations from the two shortlisted companies who responded to 

Design-Build Project for Miami Springs Aquatic Facility RFP# 01-14/15: 
 
            West construction              7:00 - 7:30 PM 
            Lunacon Group                   7:30 - 8:00 PM 
 
B) Discussion and selection of a Design-Build contractor 

 
West Construction and Lunacon Group made presentations and provided a PowerPoint to 
discuss their design-build project for the Miami Springs Aquatic facility. 
 
 
 



 
 2 

Assistant City Manager William Alonso explained his financial concerns with delaying the 
process three to six months.  
 
Councilman Bain moved to submit the ranking sheets and to select the contractors 
tonight. Councilman Windrem seconded the motion. 
 
Councilman Lob said that he would like to get answers of the questions that were asked to 
the two firms before making a decision. He believes that the decision could wait until the 
regular Council meeting on Monday. 
 
Mayor Garcia commented that the questions that were asked have already been answered 
prior to this meeting. Council is already aware that if the pool were made deeper or 
additional lanes were added it would cost more money. He believes that those topics can 
be discussed as part of the negotiations once a firm has been selected. 
 
Councilman Lob understands that once volume changes, the cost will drastically change 
but he feels that Council owes their constituents the answers to the questions.  
 
Councilman Bain withdrew his motion and Councilman Windrem withdrew his 
second. 
 
Councilman Bain moved to make the selection of the contractor at the City Council 
regular meeting on Monday, January 26, 2015. Councilman Petralanda seconded the 
motion which was carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Petralanda, Councilmen Windrem, Bain, Lob and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
City Attorney Seiden stated that the questions that would be asked of the firms is what the 
total cost would be for providing two additional lanes and what would be required for 
deepening the pool and what additional equipment would be required with a corresponding 
credit that would be coming back for the smaller amount of deck space that would be 
provided should there not be eight lanes. 
 
Mayor Garcia clarified that Vice Mayor Petralanda’s request is in reference to making our 
pool a competition pool in those eight lanes besides what has already been proposed. He 
would like a separate price of what it would cost to make their proposals an eight lane 
competition pool. 
 
Jorge Ferrer, of Bermello Ajamil & Partners explained that Council has gone through this 
process before and could not come to a consensus on what activities could be done at the 
pool because it was decided that a competition pool was not going to be done. 
 
Councilman Bain expressed his concerns for making the firms go through this process all 
over again. He said that Council has already voted on what they wanted to see for the 
aquatic center. He is ready to make a decision. 
 
Councilman Bain moved to ask Council if they need to ask these companies to 
propose a competition pool? Councilman Windrem seconded the motion which was 
carried 3-2 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Councilmen Windrem, Bain 
and Mayor Garcia voting No; Councilman Lob and Vice Mayor Petralanda voting Yes. 
 
 



 
 3 

Discussion ensued regarding the eight lane competition pool not being in the budget. 
Mayor Garcia commented that Council needs to stand by the decisions that they have 
already made. 
 
Councilman Bain moved to make the selection of the contractor tonight. Councilman 
Windrem seconded the motion which was carried 4-1 on roll call vote. The vote was 
as follows: Councilmen Windrem, Bain, Lob and Mayor Garcia voting Yes; Vice 
Mayor Petralanda voting No. 
 
Councilman Bain made a motion to select Lunacon Group. Councilman Windrem 
seconded the motion which was carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as 
follows: Vice Mayor Petralanda, Councilmen Windrem, Bain, Lob and Mayor Garcia 
voting Yes. 
 
4. New Business 
 
  A) Presentations from the four shortlisted firms who responded to 
Request for Qualifications #03-13/14 for Architectural, Engineering, Planning, Design and 
Staff Support Services: 
  
   Craven Thompson & Assoc.       8:30 - 9:00 PM 
             Miller Legg                                9:00 - 9:30 PM 
             Calvin, Giordano & Assoc.          9:30 – 10:00 PM 
             CPH, Inc.                                    10:00 - 10:30PM 

 
B) Discussion and Selection of a Firm 

 
Council viewed PowerPoint presentations and received handouts from Craven Thompson 
& Associates, Miller Legg, Calvin, Giordano & Associates, and CPH, Inc. for architectural, 
engineering, planning, design and staff support services for the City.   
 
Councilman Bain moved to extend the meeting 15 minutes. Councilman Lob 
seconded the motion which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Petralanda, Councilmen Windrem, Bain, Lob and Mayor Garcia voting 
Yes. 
 
Council decided to have discussion and rank the firms at their regular Council 
meeting on Monday, January 26, 2015.  
 
 
5. Adjourn 

 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 11:17 p.m. 
 
 



 
 4 

 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
this 9th day of February, 2015. 
 
 
           
Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 

 
 



 
 1 

 
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Monday, January 26, 2015 7:00 p.m. 

 
Council Chambers at City Hall 

201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 7:10 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
 
Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Jaime A. Petralanda 
Councilman Michael Windrem 
Councilman Billy Bain 
Councilman George V. Lob 
 
City Manager Ronald K. Gorland 
Assistant City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso 
City Attorney Jan K. Seiden 
Chief of Police Armando A. Guzman 
Professional Services Supervisor Tammy L. Romero 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
  
 
2. Invocation: Offered by Councilman Lob 
 

Salute to the Flag: Students from Miami Springs Elementary School led audience 
in the Pledge of Allegiance and Salute to the Flag 
 
3.  Awards & Presentations:  

 
A) Presentation of Certificates of Recognition to the U-11 MS/VG Girls Soccer 

Team for winning the Kelme Cup in Naples 
 
Mayor Garcia presented Certificates of Recognition to the members of the U-11 MS/VG 
Girls Soccer team and their coaches, Bobby Salazar and Carlos Prieto. 
 

B) Presentation of Certificates of Recognition to the U-8 MS/VG Boys Soccer 
Team for winning the Kelme Cup in Naples 
 
Mayor Garcia presented Certificates of Recognition to the members of the U-18 MS/VG 
Boys Soccer team and their coaches, Bobby Salazar and Tony Silva. 
 
4. Open Forum: There were no members of the public who signed up to speak. 
 



 
 2 

5. Approval of Council Minutes: 
 
A) January 12, 2015 – Special Meeting 
B) January 12, 2015 – Regular Meeting 

 
Councilman Windrem moved to approve the minutes of the Special and Regular 
meetings of January 12, 2015.  Councilman Lob seconded the motion which was 
carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Petralanda, 
Councilmen Windrem, Bain, Lob and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
6. Reports from Boards & Commissions: None 
  
7. Public Hearings: None 
  
8. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted)  
 

A) Recommendation by Recreation that Council approve an expenditure to Superior 
Parks Systems, Inc., the lowest responsible quote, utilizing Miami Dade County contract #4907-
3/13-1, in the amount of $43,758.45 for a 20 X 20 steel frame hexagon pavilion at Stafford Park, 
as funds were approved in the FY14/15 Budget, pursuant to Section §31.11 (C) (2) of the City 
Code 
 
City Attorney Seiden clarified that it is not correct to base the selection on the lowest responsible 
quote and also to utilize a contract. He was advised by Staff that they did obtain three quotes 
and the lowest quote was a contractor that happened to have a contract with Miami-Dade 
County. 
 

B) Recommendation by Golf and Country Club that Council authorize the 
issuance of a Purchase Order to Neff Rentals, utilizing Miami Dade County Bid # 8446-
5/17-1, on an “as needed basis” in the amount of $28,950.25, for backhoe and boomlift 
rental equipment as funds were approved in the FY14/15 Budget, pursuant to Section 
§31.11 (E)(1) of the City Code 

 
City Attorney Seiden stated that Assistant City Manager/Finance Director Alonso has 
advised that he is reducing the amount to $10,000 since he will explore the possibility of a 
lease/purchase of the equipment instead of leasing. 
  

C) Recommendation by Finance-Professional Services that Council award City 
RFP #02-14/15 to Kelly Janitorial Systems, Inc., the lowest responsible bidder, on an “as 
needed basis” in the amount of $6,900.00 monthly ($82,800.00 annually), for Janitorial 
services City-wide, as funds were approved in the FY14/15 Budget, pursuant to Section 
§31.11 (E)(1) of the City Code 
 
City Attorney Seiden explained that because the contract amount is specific, it is not 
correct to state “on an as needed basis”. They were extra words that were left in accidently. 
  
Councilman Lob moved to approve the consent agenda with the changes as stated.  
Vice Mayor Petralanda seconded the motion. 
 
Vice Mayor Petralanda pulled 8A for discussion. 
 



 
 3 

Vice Mayor Lob amended his motion to approve only 8B and 8C. 
  
The amended motion was carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice 
Mayor Petralanda, Councilmen Windrem, Bain, Lob and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
To answer Vice Mayor Petralanda’s question, the City Manager clarified that the fee 
schedule for rental of the pavilion should be the same as the existing one at Prince Field. 
He offered to check the rental fee and bring the information back to Council. 
 
Councilman Lob moved to approve 8A.  Vice Mayor Petralanda seconded the motion 
which was carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Petralanda, Councilmen Windrem, Bain, Lob and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
9. Old Business:  
 

A) Appointments to Advisory Boards by the Mayor and Council Members 
 
There were no appointments to advisory boards at this time. 
 

B) Selection of a firm from the four shortlisted firms who responded to Request 
for Qualifications #03-13/14 for Architectural, Engineering, Planning, Design and Staff 
Support Services (Deferred from Special Meeting on January 21, 2015) 
 
City Attorney Seiden advised Council to rank the companies number one through number 
four on the evaluation sheets that were provided and to sign their sheet for the record. The 
company with the lowest number of total points is the number one ranked firm. He 
announced the rankings as follows: 
 

Craven Thompson & Associates, Inc. - 10 points 
Miller Legg & Associates – 11 points 
CPH Engineers - 11 points 
Calvin Giordano & Associates - 18 points 

 
The City Attorney stated that negotiations would begin with Craven Thompson & 
Associates, Inc. and if unsuccessful, Council will then make a selection between Miller 
Legg & Associates and CPH Engineers. 
 
10. New Business:  
  
 A)  Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs 
Expressing Its Opposition To Any Increase In Gasoline Taxes By The Congress Of The 
United States Or The Legislature Of The State Of Florida; Directions To City Clerk; 
Effective Date 
 
City Attorney Seiden read the resolution in its entirety. 
 
Councilman Bain moved to approve.  Vice Mayor Petralanda seconded the motion 
which was carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Petralanda, Councilmen Windrem, Bain, Lob and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
 



 
 4 

 B) Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The   City Of Miami 
Springs, Florida Authorizing Signatories For All City Bank, Savings And Trust Accounts; 
Authorizing Acceptance Of Two Facsimile Signatures Of City Manager Ronald K. Gorland 
And Assistant City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso; Authorizing The Combined 
Manual Signatures Of Two Of The Following: City Manager Ronald K. Gorland And 
Finance Director William Alonso, Or Chief Of Police Armando A. Guzman; Rescinding All 
Resolutions In Conflict; Effective Date 
 
City Attorney Seiden read the title of the resolution. 
 
Councilman Lob moved to approve.  Vice Mayor Petralanda seconded the motion 
which was carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Petralanda, Councilmen Windrem, Bain, Lob and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
11. Other Business: 

 
A)  FY2014-2015 1st Quarter Budget Status Report (unaudited) 

 
Assistant City Manager/Finance Director reported that the revenues and expenditures are 
on target and there were no major variances noted in the first quarter. He announced that 
the City auditors are planning to complete the audit that will be presented at the February 
9th Council meeting.  The designation of fund balance and surplus reserves will also be 
presented at that time. 
   
12. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 

The City Attorney had no report at this time. 
 

B) City Manager 
 
City Manager Gorland announced that the Daddy/Daughter Dance would be held on 
Saturday, February 21st and tickets are selling out fast. 
 

C) City Council 
 
Councilman Windrem and Vice Mayor Petralanda had no reports at this time. 
 
Councilman Lob reported that the annual MS/VG Soccer banquet was held this past 
weekend and was very successful and well attended.  He thanked the Village of Virginia 
Gardens for hosting the event.  He said that the Miami Springs Optimist Club sponsored a 
fencing tournament that went well and was fun. 
 
Councilman Bain had no report at this time. 
 
City Attorney Seiden reported that Staff would hold an internal meeting tomorrow to follow 
through on the aquatic facility and a meeting would be held on Thursday, February 29th 
with the successful RFP respondent. 
 
 



 
 5 

Mayor Garcia announced that the Dolphin Cycling Challenge would be held on Saturday, 
February 28th and there would be some road closures and altered traffic patterns.  He 
reminded everyone of the weekly Farmers Market held on Saturdays which is very busy 
and he appreciates that the new Chief of Police attended the event to say hello to 
everyone. Councilman Windrem was also at the Farmers Market playing his guitar with 
Ray’s Guitars. Springs’ Cross-fit celebrated their one-year anniversary with a booth at the 
Farmers Market and he encourages everyone to attend the event. 
 
Mayor Garcia congratulated Councilman Bain on the birth of his granddaughter. He 
congratulated the winning sports teams and all the kids who participate. 
 
 
13. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 7:52 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
this 9th day of February, 2015. 
 
 
           
Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 
 



 

 

 
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 
 
The Board of Adjustment met in Regular Session at 6:15 p.m., on Monday, February 2, 
2015 in the Council Chambers at City Hall. 
 
 
1) Call to Order/Roll Call 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:24 p.m.    
 
The following were present:  Chairman Manuel Pérez-Vichot  
     Vice Chair Ernie Aloma 
     Bill Tallman 
     Bob Calvert 
     
Absent:    Juan Molina 
    

  
 
Also present:    City Attorney Jan K. Seiden 
     Planning and Zoning Director Chris Heid 
     Board Secretary Elora R. Sakal 
 
 
2)  Approval of Minutes 
 
Minutes of the November 3, 2014 meeting were approved as written. 
 
Vice Chair Aloma moved to approve the minutes.  Board member Tallman seconded 
the motion which was carried unanimously on voice vote. 
 
 
4) New Business:  
 
Board Secretary Sakal swore in all witnesses and the Planning and Zoning Director. 
 
Board member Calvert arrived at this time. 
 
 
 



 

Minutes – Board of Adjustment  Monday, February 2, 2015 2 

A) Case # 04-V-15 
DEAN WHITMAN 

  610 PLOVER AVENUE 
  Zoning: R1-B 
  Lot Size: 10,125 SQ. FT. 
 
Applicant is seeking a variance from Section 150-013 to permit a wood picket fence in the 
front yard, as follows: 
 

1. Requests variance from Section 150-013 (C)(1) to waive the prohibition on the 
construction of a wood fence in the front yard.  (Construction of a wood picket 
fence in the front yard proposed). 

 
Planning and Zoning Director Chris Heid read the recommendation to the Board. He 
commented that he issued the permit without realizing that wood fences are not permitted. 
The only thing in the ground at this point is the posts and they have been cut down to 42 
inches.  
 
There was no correspondence for this variance. 
 
City Attorney Seiden recommended that the Board make a suggestion to Council to amend 
the Ordinance to provide wood as an approved material.  
 
Vice Chair Aloma moved to approve the motion and recommended that Council amend 
the Ordinance to approve wood fences. Board member Tallman seconded the motion 
which carried unanimously on voice vote. 
 

B) Case # 03-V-15 
MARIO FABIAN 

    220 S. MELROSE DRIVE 
  Zoning: R1-C 
  Lot Size: 7,800 SQ. FT. 
 
Applicant is seeking a variance from Section 150-043 to allow the construction of a new 
house on a lot that does not meet the minimum lot width requirement, as follows: 
 
1. Requests variance from Section 150-043 (C) to waive 15 feet of the minimum    
required lot width of 75 feet. (Construction on a lot 60 feet in width proposed). 
 
Planning and Zoning Director Chris Heid read the recommendation to the Board. He said 
that in December, 2013 this property contained a house but was badly deteriorated so it 
was demolished. There are existing properties on each side and there is no opportunity for 
the applicant to purchase anymore land to make his property wider. Although it does not 
meet the minimum lot width, it has more than the minimum lot size. 
 
There was no correspondence for this variance. 
 
City Attorney Seiden clarified that it was a lot that was built upon but it is not technically a 
buildable lot. In addition, it has been confirmed that this lot was not created by an illegal 
subdivision of either property adjoining the subject property, and that neither the prior nor 
current property owner had any title interest in either of the properties adjoining the subject 
property. 
 



 

Minutes – Board of Adjustment  Monday, February 2, 2015 3 

Vice Chair Aloma moved to approve the variance. Board member Tallman seconded the 
motion which carried unanimously on voice vote. 
 

C) Case # 02-V-15 
  LUIS IZQUIERDO 
  871 FALCON AVENUE 
  Zoning: R1-C 
  Lot Size: 12,025 SQ. FT. 
  
Applicant is seeking a variance from Section 150-015, Parking of Commercial Vehicles, 
to park a vehicle in excess of weight, height and length as follows: 
 

1. Requests variance from Section 150-015 (A)(1)(d) to park a vehicle that exceeds 
the weight, height and length limitations, but that is used exclusively for family 
transportation in a single family neighborhood. 

  
Planning and Zoning Director Chris Heid read the recommendation to the Board. He said 
that the tons and the length requirements are met but the height requirement is not met. 
The vehicle appears to be a commercial vehicle but the applicant is under oath and has 
said that it is not for commercial use. 
 
There was no correspondence for this variance. 
 
City Attorney Seiden read the recently amended commercial vehicle ordinance provision 
that is applicable to this particular case. 
 
Mr. Izquierdo stated that the vehicle is not used for commercial purposes. He uses it for 
projects around the house and when he purchases things for his home from Home Depot. 
He purchased the car used and it already had the ply wood and shelving in it when he 
purchased it.  
 
Vice Chair Aloma moved to approve the variance. Board member Tallman seconded the 
motion which carried 4-0 on roll call vote. 
  
 

D) Case # 01-V-15 
  BEATRIZ MARTA ANGELUCCI 
  372 PAYNE DRIVE 
  Zoning: R1-C 
  Lot Size: 12,025 SQ. FT. 
  
 
Applicant is seeking an after-the-fact variance from Section 150-043 to retain a pergola 
with an outdoor kitchen located in the required side yard setback as follows: 
 

1. Requests variance from Section 150-043 (E)(1) to waive 5’11” of the minimum 
required side yard setback of 6’6”.  (Side yard setback of 0’ 7” proposed). 

 
Board member Tallman made a motion to postpone the meeting as per the applicant’s 
request. Vice Chair Aloma seconded the motion which carried unanimously on voice 
vote. 
 
 
 



 

Minutes – Board of Adjustment  Monday, February 2, 2015 4 

6) Adjournment 
 
There was no further business to be discussed and the meeting was adjourned at 
6:49p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted: 

                                        
Elora R. Sakal                                                                        
Board Secretary                                                                          
 
 
Adopted by the Board on                                                         
this 2nd day of March, 2015.                                                  
 
 
                                                      
Manny Perez-Vichot, Chair 
 
 
Words -stricken through- have been deleted.  Underscored words represent changes. All 
other words remain unchanged. 
 
************************************************************************** 
 “The comments, discussions, recommendations and proposed actions of City Citizen 
Advisory Boards do not constitute the policy, position, or prospective action of the City, 
which may only be established and authorized by an appropriate vote or other action of 
the City Council”. 
************************************************************************** 
 



February 5 for January

General Fund Departments Cost Hours

Office of the City Clerk 2,448.90         18.14
Human Resources Department 707.40            5.24
Risk Management 409.05            3.03
Finance Department 2,092.50         15.50
Professional Services 0.00
Building,Zoning & Code Enforcement Department 1,304.10         9.66
Planning 672.30            4.98
Police Department 368.55            2.73
Public Works Department 373.95            2.77
Recreation Department 1,501.20         11.12
IT Department 0.00
Golf 94.50              0.70
Senior 249.75            1.85
General - Administrative Work 3,082.55         22.83
Sub-total - General Fund $13,304.75 98.55

Special Revenue, Trust & Agency Funds
Golf Course Operations 0.00
L.E.T.F. 0.00
Due from Pension Funds 0.00
Sub-total - Special Funds $0.00 0.00

GRAND TOTAL:  ALL FUNDS $13,304.75 98.55

The City of Miami Springs
     Summary of Monthly Attorney Invoice

Orshan, Lithman, Seiden, Ramos, Hatton & Huesmann, LLP





























































    

 
 
 

 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166-5259 
Phone: 305.805.5006 
Fax: 305.805.5028 

 

 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Garcia and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM:  Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, City Clerk  
 
DATE:  February 5, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: PENDING BOARD APPOINTMENTS 
 
************************************************************************************************************************************** 
The following appointments are pending: 

 NEW               ORIGINAL   LAST 
APPOINTMENT CURRENT  TERM  APPOINTMENT      APPOINTMENT 
COUNCILMEMBER  MEMBER     EXPIRES     DATE           DATE        
 
Board of Adjustment/Zoning and Planning Board   
Mayor Zavier Garcia Juan Molina  04-30-2015  01-29-2015 01-29-2015 
Councilman Bain – Group 2 Ernie Aloma  04-30-2016  04-13-2009 01-11-2011 
Councilman Lob – Group 3 Bill Tallman  04-30-2016  01-11-2010 05-14-2012 
Vice Mayor Petralanda-Group 4 Manuel Pérez-Vichot 04-30-2017  12-14-1998 04-25-2011 
Vice Mayor Petralanda-Group 4 Michael White*  10-31-2015  VACANT VACANT 
 
Code Review Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Connie Kostyra*  04-30-2015  VACANT VACANT 
Councilman Bain – Group 2 Arthur Freyre  04-30-2017  05-19-2009 05-09-2011 
Councilman Lob – Group 3 Dan Dorrego  04-30-2016  08-11-2003 05-24-2010 
Vice Mayor Petralanda–Group 4 Jana Armstrong  04-30-2016  06-11-2001 05-10-2010 
 
Disability Advisory Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Charlene Anderson* 12-31-2016  VACANT VACANT 
Councilman Windrem – Group 1 Catherine Stadnik 12-31-2016  12-14-1998 02-14-2011 
Councilman Lob – Group 3 Richard Barnes  12-31-2016  05-11-2009 01-24-2011 
Vice Mayor Petralanda Group 4 Roslyn Buckner  12-31-2016  03-26-2012 03-26-2012 
 
Education Advisory Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  VACANT  05-31-2015  VACANT VACANT 
Councilman Windrem  VACANT  05-31-2015  VACANT VACANT 
Councilman Bain – Group 2 Dr. Mara Zapata  05-31-2015  06-13-2011 06-13-2011 
Councilman Lob – Group 3 Ilia Molina   05-31-2015  02-05-2015 02-05-2015 
Vice Mayor Petralanda - Group 4 Kim Warner  05-31-2015  05-13-2013 05-13-2013 
 
Recreation Commission 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  E. Jorge Santin  04-30-2016  04-14-2008 12-13-2010 
Councilman Bain – Group 2 Dr. Stephanie Kondy***** 04-30-2017  06-13-2005 09-10-2012 
Councilman Lob – Group 3 Clark Rinehart*  04-30-2015  VACANT VACANT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
* Connie Kostyra resigned on April 28, 2011. 

Charlene Anderson resigned on June 6, 2011. 
Michael White resigned on August 18, 2014. 

 Clark Rinehart resigned on January 10, 2015 
 
***** Recreation Commission – Council confirmation required per §32.05 (A)……… “No commission member who shall 

have served three consecutive terms of office shall be eligible to serve an additional term of office for two years 
thereafter, unless the appointment for any additional term shall be confirmed by a majority of the council.” 

 

































 

A-1 

 
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 2014 – 3638  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA; AUTHORIZING THE 
ISSUANCE OF CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REFUNDING REVENUE NOTE, 
SERIES 2015 IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO 
EXCEED $7,600,000 TO FINANCE CERTAIN CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENTS; PROVIDING THAT SUCH NOTE SHALL 
BE A LIMITED OBLIGATION OF THE CITY PAYABLE 
FROM PLEDGED REVENUES AS PROVIDED HEREIN; 
PROVIDING FOR THE RIGHTS, SECURITIES AND 
REMEDIES FOR THE OWNER OF SUCH NOTE; MAKING 
CERTAIN COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS IN 
CONNECTION THEREWITH; DESIGNATING THE NOTE 
FOR THE EXCEPTION FOR CERTAIN TAX-EXEMPT 
OBLIGATIONS CONTAINED IN SECTION 265 OF THE 
INTERNAL REVENUE CODE OF 1986, AS AMENDED; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, 

FLORIDA: 
 

Section 1. Authority for this Resolution.  This Resolution is adopted pursuant 
to the provisions of the Constitution of the State of Florida, Chapter 166, Florida Statutes, 
Chapter 218, Part VI, Florida Statutes, the Charter of the City of Miami Springs, Florida 
(the “Issuer”), and other applicable provisions of law. 
 

Section 2. Definitions.  The following words and phrases shall have the 
following meanings when used herein including the exhibits attached hereto: 
 

“Act” means the Constitution of the State of Florida, Chapter 166, Florida Statutes, 
the Charter of the Issuer, and other applicable provisions of law. 

 
“Adjusted BQ Rate” shall mean, upon a Loss of Bank Qualified Status, the interest 

rate per annum that shall provide the Owner with the same after tax yield that the Owner 
would have otherwise received had the Loss of Bank Qualified Status not occurred, 
taking into account the increased taxable income of the Owner as a result of such Loss of 
Bank Qualified Status.  The Owner shall provide the Issuer with a written statement 
certified by an authorized officer of the Owner explaining in reasonable detail the 
calculation of the Adjusted Bank Qualified Rate, which statement shall, in the absence of 
manifest error, be conclusive and binding on the Issuer.   

 



 

A-2 

“Annual Budget” means the budget or budgets, as amended and supplemented 
from time to time, prepared by the Issuer for each Fiscal Year in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Florida.  

 
“Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or day on which 

banking institutions within the State of Florida are authorized or required by law to remain 
closed.   

 
“City Clerk” means the City Clerk of the Issuer or any Deputy City Clerk. 

 
“City Manager” means the duly appointed and acting City Manager of the Issuer, or 

any duly authorized deputy thereof. 
 
“Closing Date” means the date of issuance and delivery of the Note, expected to 

be February 23, 2015, or such other date as determined by the Issuer and the Original 
Purchaser. 
 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and any Treasury 
Regulations, whether temporary, proposed or final, promulgated thereunder or applicable 
thereto. 

 
"Debt" means all of the following to the extent payable from or secured by a lien 

upon the Pledged Revenues: (i) all obligations of the Issuer for borrowed money or 
evidenced by bonds, debentures, notes or other similar instruments, (ii) all obligations of 
the Issuer to pay the deferred purchase price of property or services, except trade 
accounts payable under normal trade terms and which arise in the normal course of 
business, and (iii) all obligations of the Issuer under capitalized leases. 

 
“Debt Service Requirement” for any Note Year shall mean the sum of: (1) the 

amount required to pay the interest becoming due on the Note and any Additional Debt 
during such Note Year and (2) the amount required to pay the principal of such Note and 
Additional Debt maturing in such Note Year. 

 
“Default Rate” means the rate of the lesser of (i) the sum of the Prime Rate plus 8% 

and (ii) the maximum rate allowed by law.  
 

“Fiscal Year” means the period commencing on October 1 of each year and ending 
on the succeeding September 30. 

 
“Franchise Fee Revenues” means the franchise fees levied and collected by the 

Issuer, pursuant to Ordinance No. 899-2003 duly enacted by the City Council of the 
Issuer on July 14, 2003, granting the electric franchise to Florida Power & Light Company, 
its successors and assigns, including any renewals or extensions thereof, or any 
franchise or franchises granted in substitution therefor.  

 



 

A-3 

“Interest Rate” means a rate which is equal to initially 3.07% per annum, subject to 
adjustment as provided herein upon an Event of Default, a Taxable Event or Loss of Bank 
Qualified Status; provided, however, the Interest Rate shall not exceed the maximum rate 
permitted by law.  
 

“Issuer” means the City of Miami Springs, Florida, a municipal corporation of the 
State of Florida. 

 
“Loss of Bank Qualified Status” means a determination by the Owner that the Note 

is not a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the 
Code (or any successor provision). 

 
“Mayor” means the Mayor of the Issuer or his designee. 

 
“Maximum Debt Service Requirement” means mean, as of a particular date of 

calculation, the greatest amount of Debt Service Requirement for the then current or any 
future Note Year. 

 
 "Non-Ad Valorem Revenues" means all revenues of the Issuer not derived from ad 
valorem taxation, and which are lawfully available to pay debt service on the Note. 
 
 “Non-Self-Supporting Revenue Debt” means obligations evidencing indebtedness 
for borrowed money, including the Note, (i) the primary security for which is provided by a 
covenant of the Issuer to budget and appropriate Non-Ad Valorem Revenues of the 
Issuer for the payment of debt service on such obligations, or (ii) primarily secured or 
payable from another source of funds, but with respect to which the Issuer has also 
covenanted to budget and appropriate Non-Ad Valorem Revenues of the Issuer for the 
payment of debt service on such obligations, provided that obligations described in this 
clause (ii) shall only be considered Non-Self-Supporting Revenue Debt to the extent the 
Issuer has included in its budget (by amendment or otherwise) the payment of such 
Non-Ad Valorem Revenues pursuant to such covenant to pay debt service on such 
obligations.  
 

“Note” means the Note of the Issuer authorized by Section 4 hereof. 
 
“Note Year” shall mean the period beginning with February 1 through January 30 

of the following year. 
 

“Original Purchaser” means STI Institutional & Government, Inc., a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of SunTrust Bank, and any successor or assigns as a holder of the Note. 
 

“Owner” or “Owners” means the Person or Persons in whose name or names the 
Notes shall be registered on the books of the Issuer kept for that purpose in accordance 
with provisions of this Resolution, including, initially, the Original Purchaser. 
 



 

A-4 

“Person” means natural persons, firms, trusts, estates, associations, corporations, 
partnerships and public bodies. 
 

"Pledged Revenues" means collectively, (i) Public Service Tax Revenues, (ii) 
Franchise Fee Revenues, (iii) Non-Ad Valorem Revenues budgeted, appropriated and 
deposited into the Debt Service Fund in accordance with Section 8 herein, and (iv) 
moneys in the funds and accounts established herein, together with interest earnings 
thereon. 

 
"Prime Rate" means the per annum rate which SunTrust Bank announces from 

time to time to be its prime rate, as in effect from time to time.  SunTrust Bank’s prime rate 
is a reference or benchmark rate, is purely discretionary and does not necessarily 
represent the lowest or best rate charged to borrowing customers.  SunTrust Bank may 
make commercial loans or other loans at rates of interest at, above or below SunTrust 
Bank’s prime rate.  Each change in the SunTrust Bank’s prime rate shall be effective from 
and including the date such change is announced as being effective. 

  
“Principal Office” means, with respect to the Original Purchaser, the office located 

at 8699 NW 36th Street, 2nd Floor, Doral, Florida  33166 or such other office as the 
Original Purchaser may designate to the Issuer in writing. 

 
“Project” means certain capital improvements, including but not limited to, (i) the 

construction and equipping of the Issuer’s aquatic facility, (ii) construction and renovation 
of a public park, commonly known as Stafford Park, and (iii) refunding of the Refunded 
Note. 

 
“Public Service Tax Revenues” means the revenues levied and collected by the 

Issuer on the sale of electricity, metered or bottled gas (natural, liquefied petroleum gas or 
manufactured) and fuel oil, under the authority of Section 166.231, Florida Statutes and 
Ordinance No. 513 duly enacted by the City Council of the Issuer on June 26, 1972. 

 
“Refunded Note” means the Issuer’s $2,435,812 Capital Improvement Refunding 

Revenue Note, Series 2010 outstanding in the principal amount of $1,981,280.85. 
 

“Resolution” means this Resolution, pursuant to which the Notes are authorized to 
be issued. 
 

“State” means the State of Florida. 
 
"Taxable Event" means the occurrence after the date hereof of a final decree or 

judgment of any federal court or a final action of the Internal Revenue Service 
determining that interest paid or payable on all or a portion of the Note is or was 
includable in the gross income of the Owner thereof for federal income tax purposes; 
provided, that no such decree, judgment, or action will be considered final for this 
purpose, however, unless the Issuer has been given written notice and, if it is so desired 
and is legally allowed, has been afforded the opportunity to contest the same, either 



 

A-5 

directly or in the name of the Owner of the Note, and until the conclusion of any appellate 
review, if sought.  A "Taxable Event" does not include and is not triggered by a change in 
law by Congress that causes the interest to be includable under Owner's gross income. 

 
“Taxable Period” means the period of time between (a) the date that interest on the 

Note is deemed to be includable in the gross income of the Owner thereof for federal 
income tax purposes, as a result of a Taxable Event, and (b) the date of the Taxable 
Event and after which the Note bears interest at the Taxable Rate.  

 
“Taxable Rate” means the interest rate per annum that shall provide the Owner 

with the same after tax yield that the Owner would have otherwise received had the 
Taxable Event not occurred, taking into account the increased taxable income of the 
Owner as a result of such Taxable Event.  The Owner shall provide the Issuer with a 
written statement explaining the calculation of the Taxable Rate, which statement shall, in 
the absence of manifest error, be conclusive and binding on the Issuer.  

 
Section 3. Findings. 

 
(A) For the benefit of its inhabitants, the Issuer finds, determines and declares 

that it is necessary for the continued preservation of the health, welfare, convenience and 
safety of the Issuer and its inhabitants to finance the Project.  Issuance of the Note to 
finance the Project satisfies a paramount public purpose. 
 

(B) Debt service on the Note will be payable from Pledged Revenues.  The 
Pledged Revenues will be sufficient to pay the principal and interest on the Note herein 
authorized, as the same become due, and to make all deposits required by this 
Resolution. 
 

(C) The Issuer has received an offer from the Original Purchaser to purchase 
the Note.  Prior to the issuance of the Note, the Issuer shall receive from the Original 
Purchaser, a Purchaser’s Certificate and a Disclosure Certificate, the forms of which are 
attached hereto as Exhibits C and D, respectively.  
 

(D) In consideration of the purchase and acceptance of the Note authorized to 
be issued hereunder by those who shall be the Owners thereof from time to time, this 
Resolution shall constitute a contract between the Issuer and the Owners. 
 

Section 4. Authorization of Note.  Subject and pursuant to the provisions of 
this Resolution, obligations of the Issuer to be known as City of Miami Springs, Florida, 
Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Note, Series 2015 is hereby authorized to be 
issued under and secured by this Resolution, in the aggregate principal amount of not to 
exceed $7,600,000, for the purpose of providing funds to finance the cost of the Project 
and paying the costs of issuing the Note.  Because of the characteristics of the Note, 
prevailing market conditions, and additional savings to be realized from an expeditious 
sale of the Note, it is in the best interest of the Issuer to accept the offer of the Original 
Purchaser to purchase the Note at a private negotiated sale.  Prior to the issuance of the 



 

A-6 

Note, the Issuer shall receive from the Original Purchaser a disclosure letter containing 
the information required by Section 218.385, Florida Statutes. 
 

Section 5. Description of Note.  The Note shall be issued as one fully 
registered Note in the principal amount not to exceed $7,600,000, shall be dated as of the 
date of its delivery to the Original Purchaser thereof and shall mature on February 1, 
2030.  The Note shall be payable to the Original Purchaser, and shall bear interest equal 
to the Interest Rate and  calculated on the basis of a 360 day year for the actual number of 
days elapsed, subject to adjustment as provided in Schedule A to the form of the Note 
included herein.  Principal and interest shall be payable semiannually on each February 1 
and August 1 commencing August 1, 2015 or such other date as agreed upon by the 
Issuer and the Original Purchaser.  All unpaid principal and any interest accrued and 
unpaid shall be payable upon maturity.  The Note shall be payable in any coin or currency 
of the United States of America which on the respective dates of payment thereof is legal 
tender for the payment of public and private debts.  The interest on the Note, shall be 
payable by the Finance Director, as the paying agent (the “Paying Agent”), to the person 
appearing on the registration books of the Issuer hereinafter provided for as the 
registered Owner thereof, by ACH direct debit payments from a SunTrust Bank account 
or in such other manner as agreed upon by the Owner and the Issuer, to such registered 
Owner at his address as it appears on such registration books.  The principal and interest 
of the Note shall be payable only to the registered Owner or his legal representative 
without presentment. 
 

Upon the occurrence of an Taxable Event and so long as the Default Rate is not in 
effect, and for as long as the Note remains outstanding, the Interest Rate on the Note 
shall be converted to the Taxable Rate and this adjustment shall survive payment on this 
Note until such time as the federal statute of limitations under which the interest on the 
this Note could be declared taxable under the Code shall have expired.  In addition, upon 
an Event of Taxability, the Issuer shall, immediately upon demand, pay to the Owner (or 
prior holders, if applicable) (i) an additional amount equal to the difference between (A) 
the amount of interest actually paid on the Note during the Taxable Period and (B) the 
amount of interest that would have been paid during the Taxable Period had the Note 
borne interest at the Taxable Rate, and (ii) an amount equal to any interest, penalties and 
additions to tax (as referred to in Subchapter A of Chapter 68 of the Code) owed by the 
Owner as a result of the Taxable Event.  Any additional accrued interest due on a 
retroactive basis and amounts owed under the preceding sentence shall be paid by the 
Issuer within thirty days after demand therefor.  Such Taxable Rate will be subject to 
further adjustments as provided by the terms hereof. 
 

Upon the occurrence of a Loss of Bank Qualified Status and so long as the 
Taxable Rate or Default Rate is not in effect, the Interest Rate borne by the Note will 
increase to the Adjusted BQ Rate, effective as of the date that the Note is not a qualified 
tax exempt obligation and this adjustment shall survive payment on the Note until such 
time as the federal statute of limitations under which the interest on the Note could be 
declared taxable under the Code shall have expired.  Any additional accrued interest due 
on a retroactive basis shall be paid by the Issuer within thirty days after demand therefor 



 

A-7 

by the Owner, and interest on a prospective basis shall then be paid at the increased rate 
on the dates provided herein for the payment of interest together with an amount equal to 
any interest, penalties and additions to tax (as referred to in Subchapter A of Chapter 68 
of the Code) owed by the Holder as a result of the Loss of Bank Qualified Status.  Such 
non-bank qualified interest rate will be subject to further adjustments as provided by the 
terms hereof. 

 
The obligation to pay such additional amounts shall be payable solely from the 

Pledged Revenues. 
 
The Note is to be in substantially the form set forth on Exhibit A, attached hereto, 

together with such changes as shall be approved by the Mayor, following review by the 
City Manager, Finance Director and City Attorney, such approval to be conclusively 
evidenced by the execution thereof by the Mayor.  The Note shall be executed on behalf 
of the Issuer with the manual signature of the Mayor and shall have impressed thereon 
the official seal of the Issuer, and be attested with the manual signature of the City Clerk, 
and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute and attest to the Note on 
behalf of the Issuer.  
 

Section 6. Registration and Exchange of Note; Persons Treated as 
Owners.  The Note is initially registered to the Original Purchaser.  So long as the Note 
shall remain unpaid, the Issuer, as registrar (the “Registrar”) will keep books for the 
registration and transfer of the Note.  The Note shall be transferable only upon such 
registration books.  
 

The Person in whose name the Note shall be registered shall be deemed and 
regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, and payment of principal and 
interest on such Note shall be made only to or upon the written order of the Owner.  All 
such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such 
Note to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 

 
Section 7. Note Mutilated, Destroyed, Stolen or Lost.  In case a Note shall 

become mutilated, or be destroyed, stolen or lost, the Issuer shall issue and deliver a new 
Note of like tenor as the Note so mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost, in exchange and in 
substitution for such mutilated Note, or in lieu of and in substitution for the Note destroyed, 
stolen or lost and upon the Owner furnishing the Issuer proof of ownership thereof and 
indemnity reasonably satisfactory to the Issuer and complying with such other reasonable 
regulations and conditions as the Issuer may prescribe and paying such expenses as the 
Issuer may incur.  The Note so surrendered shall be canceled.   

 
Section 8. Security for the Note.  The Issuer hereby pledges the Pledged 

Revenues to payments of all amounts due and owing under the Note on a parity with any 
Additional Debt hereafter issued in accordance with the terms herof.  To the extent that 
the aggregate amount of Franchise Fee Revenues and the Public Service Tax Revenues 
are not adequate to pay the principal of, interest on and any prepayment premium in 
connection with the Note and all other payments required hereunder, the Issuer hereby 



 

A-8 

covenants and agrees to budget and appropriate and deposit Non-Ad Valorem Revenues 
of the Issuer in an amount which is equal to any deficiency in the debt service and such 
other payments with respect to the Note for the applicable Fiscal Year.  Such covenant 
and agreement on the part of the Issuer to budget and appropriate sufficient amounts of 
Non-Ad Valorem Revenues shall be cumulative, and shall continue until such Non-Ad 
Valorem Revenues in amounts to make up all deficiencies with respect to the required 
payments hereunder and under the Note as and when due, including any delinquent 
payments, shall have been budgeted, appropriated and actually paid into the Debt 
Service Fund.   

 
If at any point in time during a Fiscal Year of the Issuer, the Issuer determines that 

the Non-Ad Valorem Revenues are insufficient to satisfy the Issuer’s obligation to budget 
and appropriate and make payments and the satisfy the Issuer’s obligation to pay under 
any Non-Self-Supporting Revenue Debt, then the Issuer shall, from such point, budget, 
appropriate and make payments from the available Non-Ad Valorem Revenues pro-rata 
among the Note and such other Non-Self-Supporting Revenue Debt.  

 
Until such monies are budgeted, appropriated and deposited as provided herein, 

such covenant to budget and appropriate does not create any lien upon or pledge of such 
Non-Ad Valorem Revenues, nor does it preclude the Issuer from pledging in the future its 
Non-Ad Valorem Revenues, nor does it require the Issuer to levy and collect any 
particular Non-Ad Valorem Revenues, nor does it give the Owner of the Note a prior claim 
on the Non-Ad Valorem Revenues as opposed to claims of general creditors of the Issuer.  
Such covenant to budget and appropriate Non-Ad Valorem Revenues is subject in all 
respects to the prior payment of obligations secured by a pledge of such Non-Ad Valorem 
Revenues heretofore or hereafter entered into (including the payment of debt service on 
bonds and other debt instruments).  Anything in this Resolution to the contrary 
notwithstanding, it is understood and agreed that, except with respect to the Pledged 
Revenues, all obligations of the Issuer hereunder shall be payable from the portion of 
Non-Ad Valorem Revenues budgeted, appropriated and deposited as herein provided, as 
provided for herein and nothing herein shall be deemed to pledge ad valorem taxing 
power or ad valorem tax revenues or to permit or constitute a mortgage or lien upon any 
assets owned by the Issuer and no Owner of the Note nor any other person, may compel 
the levy of ad valorem taxes on real or personal property within the boundaries of the 
Issuer or the use or application of ad valorem tax revenues in order to satisfy any payment 
obligations hereunder or to maintain or continue any of the activities of the Issuer which 
generate user service charges, regulatory fees, or any other Non-Ad Valorem Revenues.  
The obligation of the Issuer to budget, appropriate, deposit and make payments 
hereunder from its Non-Ad Valorem Revenues is subject to the availability of Non-Ad 
Valorem Revenues after the satisfaction of the funding requirements for obligations 
having an express lien on or pledge of such revenues and the funding requirements for 
essential governmental services of the Issuer.  Except with respect to the Pledged 
Revenues, notwithstanding any provisions of this Resolution or the Note to the contrary, 
the Issuer shall never be obligated to maintain or continue any of the activities of the 
Issuer which generate user service charges, regulatory fees or any Non-Ad Valorem 
Revenues.  Except with respect to the Pledged Revenues, until such monies are 



 

A-9 

budgeted, appropriated and deposited as herein provided, neither this Resolution nor the 
obligations of the Issuer hereunder shall be construed as a pledge of or a lien on all or any 
legally available Non-Ad Valorem Revenues of the Issuer, but shall be payable solely as 
provided herein and is subject to the payment of services and programs which are for 
essential public purposes affecting the health, welfare and safety of the inhabitants of the 
Issuer and is further subject to the provisions of Section 166.241, Florida Statutes. 

 
Section 9. Payment of Principal and Interest; Limited Obligation.  The 

Issuer covenants and agrees that it will promptly pay the principal of and interest on the 
Note at the place, on the dates and in the manner provided herein and therein according 
to the true intent and meaning hereof and thereof.  The Issuer hereby establishes a fund 
to be known as the Series 2015 Debt Service Fund (the "Debt Service Fund") and shall 
deposit the Pledged Revenues for the payment of principal of and interest on the Note 
into such fund.  The principal and interest on the Note shall be payable from amounts on 
deposit in the Debt Service Fund. 

The lien on and pledge of the Franchise Fee Revenues shall be payable on a 
parity with and applied pro rata, based on the principal amount outstanding of the Series 
2015 Note and any Additional Debt issued and secured by lien thereon.  The lien on and 
pledge of the Public Service Tax Revenues shall be payable on a parity with and applied 
pro rata, based on the principal amount outstanding of the Series 2015 Note and any 
Additional Debt issued and secured by lien thereon.   

On the dates due, the Issuer shall pay such required amounts to the Original 
Purchaser.  After payment of the amounts due and owing hereunder, the remaining 
amounts in the Debt Service Fund shall be used for any lawful purpose of the Issuer.  

 

The Franchise Fee Revenues and the Public Service Tax Revenues shall be 
deposited and credited monthly, but not later than the twenty-fifth (25th) day of each 
month commencing in the month immediately following the delivery of the Note in the 
following manner: 
 
  (1) Taking into account actual and anticipated earnings in the Debt 
Service Fund, such sum as will be sufficient to pay one-sixth (1/6th) of all principal and 
interest coming due on the Note on the next principal and interest payment date; 
provided, however, that monthly deposits of principal and interest, or portions thereof, 
shall not be required to be made to the extent that money on deposit in the Debt Service 
Fund is sufficient for such purpose.   
 
 Deposits shall be increased or decreased to the extent required to pay principal, 
interest and prepayment premium, if any, next coming due, taking into account 
deficiencies in prior months’ deposits.  On or before each interest payment date, the 
Issuer shall make up any deficiencies in such interest deposit, based on the actual 
interest accruing through such date. 
 



 

A-10 

  (2) The balance of any moneys remaining in the Debt Service Fund after 
the above required payments have been made may be used for any lawful purpose of the 
Issuer. 
 

The Note shall not be or constitute general obligations or indebtedness of the 
Issuer as “bonds” within the meaning of Article VII, Section 12 of the Constitution of 
Florida, but shall be payable solely from the Pledged Revenues in accordance with the 
terms hereof.  No holder of any Note issued hereunder shall ever have the right to compel 
the exercise of any ad valorem taxing power to pay such Note, or be entitled to payment 
of such Note from any funds of the Issuer except from the Pledged Revenues as 
described herein. 

 
Section 10. Prepayment.  The Issuer may prepay the Note, in whole or in part, 

on any Business Day upon two (2) Business Days’ prior written notice to the Owner, 
which prepayments shall be applied against the principal installments as determined by 
the Owner in its sole discretion.  Such prepayment notice shall specify the prepayment 
amount.  In the event the Issuer elects to prepay the Note, in whole or in part, there shall 
be owed an additional fee (the “Prepayment Charge”) to compensate the Owner for all 
losses, costs and expenses incurred in connection with such prepayment to be 
determined in the following manner: 

 
The Prepayment Charge shall be equal to the present value of the 

difference between (1) the amount that would have been realized by the Owner on 
the prepaid amount for the remaining term of the portion of the Note being prepaid 
using the Federal Reserve H.15 Statistical Release rate for fixed-rate payers in 
interest rate swaps for a term corresponding to the term of the portion of the Note 
being prepaid, interpolated to the nearest month, if necessary, that was in effect 
three Business Days prior to the Closing Date and (2) the amount that would be 
realized by the Owner by reinvesting such prepaid funds for the remaining term of 
the portion of the Note being prepaid using the Federal Reserve H.15 Statistical 
Release rate for fixed-rate payers in interest rate swaps, interpolated to the 
nearest month, that was in effect three Business Days prior to the elected 
prepayment date; both discounted at the same interest rate utilized in determining 
the applicable amount in (1).  Should the present value have no value or a negative 
value, the Prepayment Charge shall be zero dollars.  Should the Federal Reserve 
no longer release rates for fixed-rate payers in interest rate swaps, the Owner may 
substitute the Federal Reserve H.15 Statistical Release with another similar index.  
The Owner shall provide the Issuer with a written statement explaining the 
calculation of the Prepayment Charge due, which statement shall, in absence of 
manifest error, be conclusive and binding.  The application of such fee or 
prepayment premium is not intended to, and shall not be deemed to be, an 
increase in the Interest Rate.  
 
Section 11. Disbursement of and Application of Proceeds of Note.  At the 

time of delivery of the Note herein authorized, the proceeds from the sale of the Note shall 
be held by the Issuer and applied by the Issuer as follows: 



 

A-11 

 
(A) The Issuer shall pay all costs and expenses in connection with the issuance 

and sale of the Note. 
 
(B) A sum sufficient to pay the Refunded Note shall be transferred to the owner 

of the Refunded Note for payment in full thereof. 
 
(C) The balance of Note proceeds shall be deposited in a separate account to 

be known as the “Project Fund” hereby established to pay costs of the Project.   
 
Section 12. Tax Covenant.  The Issuer covenants to the purchasers of the 

tax-exempt Note provided for in this Resolution that the Issuer will not make any use of 
the proceeds of the tax-exempt Note at any time during the term of the tax-exempt Note 
which, if such use had been reasonably expected on the date the tax-exempt Note was 
issued, would have caused such tax-exempt Note to be “arbitrage bonds” within the 
meaning of the Code.  The Issuer will comply with the requirements of the Code and any 
valid and applicable rules and regulations promulgated thereunder necessary to ensure 
the exclusion of interest on the tax-exempt Note from the gross income of the holders 
thereof for purposes of federal income taxation. 

 
Section 13. Bank Qualified.  The Issuer hereby designates the Note as a 

“qualified tax-exempt obligation” within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.  
The Issuer and any subordinate entities of the Issuer and any issuer of “tax-exempt” debt 
that issues “on behalf of” the Issuer do not reasonably expect during the calendar year 
2015 to issue more than $10,000,000 of “tax-exempt” obligations including the 
tax-exempt Note, exclusive of any private activity bonds as defined in Section 141(a) of 
the Code (other than qualified 501(c)(3) bonds as defined in Section 145 of the Code). 

 
Section 14. Sale of Note.  The Note is hereby sold and awarded to STI 

Institutional & Government, Inc., the Original Purchaser, at the price of par and the Mayor 
and the City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute and deliver the Note in the form set 
forth herein, receive the purchase price therefor and apply the proceeds thereof as 
hereinafter provided, without further authority from this body.  The Mayor and the City 
Clerk are authorized to make any and all changes on the form of the Note which shall be 
necessary to conform the same to the term sheet of the Original Purchaser attached 
hereto as Exhibit B.  Execution of the Note by the Mayor and the City Clerk shall be 
conclusive evidence of their approval of the form of the Note.  
 

Section 15. Impairment of Contract.  The Issuer covenants with the Owner of 
the Note that it will not, without the written consent of the Owner of the Note, enact any 
ordinance or adopt any resolution which repeals, impairs or amends in any manner 
adverse to the Owner the rights granted to the Owner of the Note hereunder. 

 
The pledging of the Pledge Revenues in the manner provided herein shall not be 

subject to repeal, modification or impairment by any subsequent ordinance, resolution or 
other proceedings of the City Council. 



 

A-12 

 
The Issuer covenants that it will not impair or adversely affect the power and right 

of the Issuer to receive the Franchise Fee Revenues and the Public Service Tax 
Revenues.  The Issuer will proceed diligently to perform legally and effectively all steps 
required on its part in the levy and collection of the Franchise Fee Revenues and the 
Public Service Tax Revenues and shall exercise all legally available remedies to enforce 
such collections now or hereafter available under State law. 

 
The Issuer covenants that it will not impair or adversely affect the levying of the 

Franchise Fee Revenue and the Public Service Tax Revenue for the term of the Note.  
The Issuer covenants that it will not repeal the ordinances levying the Franchise Fee 
Revenues and the Public Service Tax Revenues nor amend or modify said ordinances in 
any manner so as to reduce the rate or amount of Franchise Fee Revenues and Public 
Service Tax Revenues levied thereunder.  

 
Section 16. Budget and Financial Information and Other Covenants and 

Agreements.  The Issuer shall provide the Owner of the Note with a copy of its Annual 
Budget and such other financial information regarding the Issuer as the Owner of the 
Note may reasonably request.  The Issuer hereby covenants that it shall promptly give 
written notice to the Owner of the Note of any litigation or proceeding which if determined 
adversely to the Issuer would adversely affect the security for the payment of the Note.  
The Issuer shall provide the Owner of the Note with annual financial statements not later 
than 270 days after the close of such fiscal year and a copy of the final budget for each 
fiscal year of the Issuer not later than 30 days after adoption.  The financial statements 
shall be prepared in accordance with applicable law and generally accepted accounting 
principles and audited by an independent certified public accountant.  All accounting 
terms not specifically defined or specified herein shall have the meanings attributed to 
such terms under generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) as in effect from 
time to time, consistently applied. 

 
The Issuer shall within five (5) Business Days after it acquires knowledge thereof, 

notify the Owner upon the happening, occurrence, or existence of any Event of Default 
and any event or condition which with the passage of time or giving of notice, or both, 
would constitute an Event of Default, and shall provide the Owner with such written 
notice, a detailed statement by a responsible officer of the Issuer of all relevant facts and 
the action being taken or proposed to be taken by the Issuer with respect thereto.  
Regardless of the date of receipt of such notice by the Owner, such date shall not in any 
way modify the date of occurrence of the actual Event of Default. 

 
In connection with all aspects of each transaction contemplated hereunder 

(including in connection with any amendment, waiver or other modification hereof or of 
any other loan document), the Issuer acknowledges and agrees, that:  (a) (i) the Issuer 
has consulted its own legal, accounting, regulatory and tax advisors to the extent it has 
deemed appropriate, (ii) the Issuer is capable of evaluating, and understands and 
accepts the terms, risks and conditions of the transactions contemplated hereby and by 
the other loan documents, (iii) the Original Purchaser is not acting as a municipal advisor 



 

A-13 

or financial advisor to the Issuer and (v) the Original Purchaser has no fiduciary duty 
pursuant to Section 15B of the Securities Exchange Act to the Issuer with respect to the 
transactions contemplated hereby and the discussions, undertakings and procedures 
leading thereto (irrespective of whether the Original Purchaser has provided other 
services or is currently providing other services to the Issuer on other matters); (b) (i) the 
Original Purchaser is and has been acting solely as a principal and, except as expressly 
agreed in writing by the relevant parties, has not been, is not, and will not be acting as an 
advisor, agent or fiduciary, for the Issuer, or any other person and (ii) the Original 
Purchaser has no obligation to the Issuer, with respect to the transactions contemplated 
hereby except those obligations expressly set forth herein; and (c) the Original Purchaser 
may be engaged in a broad range of transactions that involve interests that differ from 
those of the Issuer, and the Original Purchaser has no obligation to disclose any of such 
interests to the Issuer.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Issuer hereby waives 
and releases any claims that it may have against the Original Purchaser with respect to 
any breach or alleged breach of agency or fiduciary duty in connection with any aspect of 
any transactions contemplated hereby.  If the Issuer would like a municipal advisor in this 
transaction that has legal fiduciary duties to the Issuer, the Issuer is free to engage a 
municipal advisor to serve in that capacity.  The loan documents related to the 
transactions contemplated herein are entered into pursuant to and in reliance upon the 
bank exemption and/or the institutional buyer exemption provided under the municipal 
advisor rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, Rule 15Ba1-1 et seq, to the 
extent that such rules apply to the transactions contemplated hereunder. 

 
Section 17. Additional Debt.  (a)  The Issuer shall issue no bonds or obligations 

of any kind or nature payable from or enjoying a lien on the Pledged Revenues if such 
obligations have priority over the Note with respect to payment or lien, nor shall the Issuer 
create or cause or permit to be created any debt, lien, pledge, assignment, encumbrance 
or other charge having priority to or being on a parity with the lien of the Note upon said 
Pledged Revenues.  However, the Issuer may issue additional Debt under the conditions 
and in the manner provided below.  Any obligations issued by the Issuer other than the 
Note and Additional Debt (as described in subparagraph (b)), which are payable from the 
Public Service Tax Revenues or Franchise Fee Revenues shall contain an express 
statement that such obligations are junior and subordinate in all respects to the Note as to 
lien on and source and security for payment from such Franchise Fee Revenues and 
Public Service Tax Revenues. 

 
(b)  No additional Debt, payable on a parity from the Franchise Fee Revenues or 

Public Service Tax Revenues (“Additional Debt”), shall be issued after the issuance of the 
Note herein authorized, except upon the conditions and in the manner hereinafter 
provided: 

 
(1)  The Issuer's Finance Director shall certify at the time of the issuance of the 

Additional Debt that the Issuer is not in default of any of the provisions, covenants and 
agreements hereof. 

 



 

A-14 

(2)  The Issuer's Finance Director shall also certify at the time of the issuance of 
the Additional Debt that the average annual aggregate amount of Franchise Fee 
Revenues and Public Service Tax Revenues for the two most recently completed Fiscal 
Years immediately preceding the proposed date of issuance of such Additional Debt shall 
equal not less than 1.50 times the Maximum Debt Service Requirement on the 
outstanding Note, any Additional Debt outstanding and the proposed Additional Debt 
during any Fiscal Year. 

 
Section 18. Anti-Dilution Calculation.  There will be an adjustment to the 

Interest Rate increased to Prime plus 8%, if the Issuer’s total Non-Ad Valorem Revenues 
less cost of essential services supported by Non-Ad Valorem Revenues, is not at least 
1.50 times the Issuer’s debt service on all Debt to be paid from Non-Ad Valorem 
Revenues including such Debt payable from one or several specific sources of Non-Ad 
Valorem Revenues (including Governmental Fund and Enterprise Fund Debt secured 
through a covenant to budget and appropriate Non-Ad Valorem Revenues), all as 
calculated per Exhibit E attached hereto.  The final review and determination of such 
calculation shall be made by the Owner.  

 
Section 19. Events of Default; Remedies of Noteholder. The following shall 

constitute Events of Default: (i) if the Issuer fails to pay any payment of principal of or 
interest on any Note as the same becomes due and payable within three (3) days; (ii) if 
the Issuer defaults in the performance or observance of any covenant or agreement 
contained in this Resolution or the Note (other than set forth in (i) above) and fails to cure 
the same within thirty (30) days from such default; or (iii) filing of a petition by or against 
the Issuer relating to bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement or readjustment of debt of 
the Issuer or for any other relief relating to the Issuer under the United States Bankruptcy 
Code, as amended, or any other insolvency act or law now or hereafter existing, or the 
involuntary appointment of a receiver or trustee for the Issuer, and the continuance of any 
such event for 60 days undismissed or undischarged. 
 

Upon the occurrence and during the continuation of any Event of Default, the 
Interest Rate on the Note shall pay be converted to the Default Rate and the Owner of the 
Note may, in addition to any other remedies set forth in this Resolution or Note, either at 
law or in equity, by suit, action, mandamus or other proceeding in any court of competent 
jurisdiction, protect and enforce any and all rights under the laws of the State of Florida, or 
granted or contained in this Resolution, and may enforce and compel the performance of 
all duties required by this Resolution, or by any applicable statutes to be performed by the 
Issuer or by any officer thereof.  Upon notification by the Issuer to the Owner that such 
Event of Default has been cured to the reasonable satisfaction of the Owner or to its 
original terms and conditions, such rate shall be converted back to the Interest Rate.  

 
Section 20. Limitation of Rights.  With the exception of any rights herein 

expressly conferred, nothing expressed or mentioned in or to be implied from this 
Resolution or the Note is intended or shall be construed to give to any Person other than 
the Issuer and the Owner any legal or equitable right, remedy or claim under or with 
respect to this Resolution or any covenants, conditions and provisions herein contained; 



 

A-15 

this Resolution and all of the covenants, conditions and provisions hereof being intended 
to be and being for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Issuer and the Owner. 
 

Section 21. Amendment.  Neither the Note nor this Resolution or any resolution 
amendatory hereof or supplemental hereto may be modified or amended in any respect 
subsequent to the issuance of the Note except with the written consent of the Owner. 

 
Section 22. City Council Members of the Issuer Exempt from Personal 

Liability.  No recourse under or upon any obligation, covenant or agreement of this 
Resolution or the Note or for any claim based thereon or otherwise in respect thereof, 
shall be had against any City Council members, as such, of the Issuer, past, present or 
future, either directly or through the Issuer it being expressly understood (a) that no 
personal liability whatsoever shall attach to, or is or shall be incurred by, the City Council 
members of the Issuer, as such, under or by reason of the obligations, covenants or 
agreements contained in this Resolution or implied therefrom, and (b) that any and all 
such personal liability, either at common law or in equity or by constitution or statute, of, 
and any and all such rights and claims against, every such City Council member of the 
Issuer, as such, are waived and released as a condition of, and as a consideration for, the 
execution of this Resolution and the issuance of the Note, on the part of the Issuer. 
 

Section 23. Authorizations.  The Mayor and any member of the City Council, 
the City Manager, the City Attorney, the City Clerk and such other officials and employees 
of the Issuer as may be designated by the Issuer are each designated as agents of the 
Issuer in connection with the issuance and delivery of the Note and are authorized and 
empowered, collectively or individually, to take all action and steps and to execute all 
instruments, documents, and contracts on behalf of the Issuer that are necessary or 
desirable in connection with the execution and delivery of the Note, and which are 
specifically authorized or are not inconsistent with the terms and provisions of this 
Resolution. 

 
Section 24. Business Days.  In any case where the due date of interest on or 

principal of the Note is not a Business Day, then payment of such principal or interest 
need not be made on such date but may be made on the next succeeding Business Day, 
provided that credit for payments made shall not be given until the payment is actually 
received by the Owner.  
 

Section 25. Applicable Provisions of Law and Venue.  This Resolution shall 
be governed by applicable federal law and the applicable laws of the State of Florida.  In 
the event of any legal proceeding arising out of or related to the Note, venue for any action 
brought in state court shall be in Miami-Dade County.  The Owner of the Note, upon 
taking possession of the Note, and the Issuer each consent to the personal jurisdiction of 
the aforementioned courts and irrevocably waive any objections to said jurisdiction. 

 
Section 26.  Waiver of Jury Trial.  The Issuer knowingly, voluntarily, and 

intentionally waives any right it may have to a trial by jury, with respect to any litigation or 
legal proceedings based on or arising out of this Resolution or the Note. 



 

A-16 

 
Section 27. Rules of Interpretation.  Unless expressly indicated otherwise, 

references to sections or articles are to be construed as references to sections or articles 
of this instrument as originally executed.  Use of the words “herein,” “hereby,” 
“hereunder,” “hereof,” “hereinbefore,” “hereinafter” and other equivalent words refer to 
this Resolution and not solely to the particular portion in which any such word is used. 
 

Section 28. Captions.  The captions and headings in this Resolution are for 
convenience only and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any 
provisions or sections of this Resolution. 

 
Section 29. Severability.  If any provision of this Resolution shall be held or 

deemed to be or shall, in fact, be illegal, inoperative or unenforceable in any context, the 
same shall not affect any other provision herein or render any other provision (or such 
provision in any other context) invalid, inoperative or unenforceable to any extent 
whatever. 
 

Section 30. Repealer.  All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith are 
hereby repealed. 
 

Section 31. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  Except such other persons as may 
be expressly described in this Resolution or in the Note, nothing in this Resolution or in 
the Note, expressed or implied, is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any 
person, other than the Issuer and the holders, any right, remedy or claim, legal or 
equitable, under and by reason of this Resolution, or any provision thereof, or of the Note, 
all provisions thereof being intended to be and being for the sole and exclusive benefit of 
the Issuer and the persons who shall from time to time be the holders. 
 
 Section 32. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and take effect 
immediately upon its passage and adoption. 
 
 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]  



 

A-17 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Miami Springs, Florida, this  
  day of   , 2014, on a motion by     and seconded by  
  . 

 
Vice Mayor Petralanda   
Councilman Windrem       
Councilman Bain      
Councilman Lob       
Mayor Garcia      

 
 
 
              

Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:           
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM:    
 
 
      
Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 EXHIBIT A 



 

A-18 

 
 FORM OF NOTE 
 
 
ANY HOLDER SHALL, PRIOR TO BECOMING A HOLDER, EXECUTE A 
PURCHASER'S CERTIFICATE CERTIFYING, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THAT SUCH 
HOLDER IS AN “ACCREDITED INVESTOR” AS SUCH TERM IS DEFINED IN THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND REGULATION D THEREUNDER.   
 
R-1  $_____________ 
 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE 

 CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REFUNDING REVENUE NOTE, SERIES 2015 
 

Dated Date Maturity Date Interest Rate 
    
 
 

The City of Miami Springs, Florida (the “Issuer”), a municipal corporation created 
and existing pursuant to the Constitution and the laws of the State of Florida, for value 
received, promises to pay from the sources hereinafter provided, to the order of 
____________ or registered assigns (hereinafter, the “Owner”), the principal sum of 
$__________ together with interest on the principal balance at the Interest Rate (as the 
same may be adjusted pursuant to Schedule A and as provided in the Resolution) based 
upon a year of 360 days, in accordance with the Resolution.  Principal and interest shall 
be payable semi-annually on the first day of each February and August, commencing 
August 1, 2015.  All unpaid principal and any interest accrued and unpaid shall be 
payable on the Maturity Date.  

 
Principal of and interest on this Note is payable in lawful money of the United 

States of America, without presentment, by ACH Direct Debit or in such other manner or 
at such other place as the Owner may designate to the Issuer in writing.  If any date for the 
payment of principal and interest hereon shall fall on a day which is not a Business Day 
(as defined in the Resolution (hereinafter defined)) the payment due on such date shall be 
due on the next succeeding day which is a Business Day, but the Issuer shall not receive 
credit for the payment until it is actually received by the Owner. 

 
All payments by the Issuer pursuant to this Note shall apply first to accrued 

interest, then to other charges due the Owner, and the balance thereof shall apply to 
principal. 
 

The Issuer may prepay this Note, in whole or in part, on any Business Day upon 
two (2) Business Days’ prior written notice to the Owner, which prepayments shall be 
applied against the principal installments as determined by the Owner in its sole 



 

A-19 

discretion.  Such prepayment notice shall specify the prepayment amount.  In the event 
the Issuer elects to prepay this Note, in whole or in part, there shall be owed an additional 
fee (the “Prepayment Charge”) to compensate the Owner for all losses, costs and 
expenses incurred in connection with such prepayment to be determined in the following 
manner: 

 
The Prepayment Charge shall be equal to the present value of the difference 

between (1) the amount that would have been realized by the Owner on the prepaid 
amount for the remaining term of the portion of the Note being prepaid using the Federal 
Reserve H.15 Statistical Release rate for fixed-rate payers in interest rate swaps for a 
term corresponding to the term of the portion of this Note being prepaid, interpolated to 
the nearest month, if necessary, that was in effect three Business Days prior to the 
Closing Date and (2) the amount that would be realized by the Owner by reinvesting such 
prepaid funds for the remaining term of the portion of this Note being prepaid using the 
Federal Reserve H.15 Statistical Release rate for fixed-rate payers in interest rate swaps, 
interpolated to the nearest month, that was in effect three Business Days prior to the 
elected prepayment date; both discounted at the same interest rate utilized in determining 
the applicable amount in (1).  Should the present value have no value or a negative value, 
the Prepayment Charge shall be zero dollars.  Should the Federal Reserve no longer 
release rates for fixed-rate payers in interest rate swaps, the Owner may substitute the 
Federal Reserve H.15 Statistical Release with another similar index.  The Owner shall 
provide the Issuer with a written statement explaining the calculation of the Prepayment 
Charge due, which statement shall, in absence of manifest error, be conclusive and 
binding.  The application of such fee or prepayment premium is not intended to, and shall 
not be deemed to be, an increase in the Interest Rate.  

 
The Issuer to the extent permitted by law hereby waives presentment, demand, 

protest and notice of dishonor. 
 

THIS NOTE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A GENERAL INDEBTEDNESS OF THE 
ISSUER WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL, STATUTORY OR 
CHARTER PROVISION OR LIMITATION, AND IT IS EXPRESSLY AGREED BY THE 
HOLDER OF THIS NOTE THAT SUCH NOTEHOLDER SHALL NEVER HAVE THE 
RIGHT TO REQUIRE OR COMPEL THE EXERCISE OF THE AD VALOREM TAXING 
POWER OF THE ISSUER OR TAXATION OF ANY REAL OR PERSONAL PROPERTY 
THEREIN FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON THIS 
NOTE OR THE MAKING OF ANY OTHER PAYMENTS PROVIDED FOR IN THE 
RESOLUTION, OR BE ENTITLED TO PAYMENT OF SUCH NOTE FROM ANY FUNDS 
OF THE ISSUER EXCEPT FROM THE PLEDGED REVENUES. 
 

This Note is issued pursuant to the Constitution of the State of Florida, Chapter 
166, Florida Statutes, Chapter 218, Part VI, Florida Statutes, the Charter of the Issuer and 
a Resolution duly adopted by the Issuer on February ____, 2015, as from time to time 
amended and supplemented (herein referred to as the “Resolution”), and is subject to all 
the terms and conditions of the Resolution.  All terms, conditions and provisions of the 
Resolution including without limitation remedies in the Event of Default are by this 



 

A-20 

reference thereto incorporated herein as a part of this Note.  Payment of the Note is 
secured by a pledge and lien on the Pledged Revenues of the Issuer, as described in the 
Resolution.  Terms used herein in capitalized form and not otherwise defined herein shall 
have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Resolution.  
 

This Note may be exchanged or transferred by the Owner hereof but only upon the 
registration books maintained by the Issuer and in the manner provided in the Resolution.   
 

It is hereby certified, recited and declared that all acts, conditions and prerequisites 
required to exist, happen and be performed precedent to and in the execution, delivery 
and the issuance of this Note do exist, have happened and have been performed in due 
time, form and manner as required by law, and that the issuance of this Note is in full 
compliance with and does not exceed or violate any constitutional or statutory limitation. 
 



 

A-21 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Miami Springs, Florida has caused this Note 
to be executed in its name by the manual signature of its Mayor and attested by the 
manual signature of its City Clerk, and its seal to be impressed hereon, all this ____ day of 
_________, 2015. 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
[SEAL] 
 

By:   
Mayor 

Attest: 
 
 
      
City Clerk 



 

A-22 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 
 

This Note is one of the Notes issued under the provisions of the within mentioned 
Resolution. 
 

__________________________________ 
Registrar, as Authenticating Agent 

 
 
Date of Authentication: 
 
                                         By   (Manual 
Signature)_______________                             

 Authorized Officer 
 
 
 ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER 
 

For value received the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
___________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________
______________                                                                   
(Please insert Social Security or other identifying number of transferee) the attached Note 
of the City of Miami Springs, Florida, and does hereby constitute and appoint                                          
_______________________________________, attorney, to transfer the said Note on 
the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 
 
Date:___________________                                                    
 
By:  _______(manual signature)___ 
Title: _____________________  

NOTICE:  No transfer will be registered and no 
new Note will be issued in the name of the 
Transferee, unless the signature to this 
assignment corresponds with the name as it 
appears upon the face of the within Note 
every particular, without alteration or 
enlargement or any change whatever and the 
Social Security or Federal Employer 
Identification Number of the Transferee is 
supplied. 

 
Signature Guaranteed by 
 
_________________________                                       
[member firm of the New York 
Stock Exchange or a commercial 



 

A-23 

bank or a trust company.] 
  



 

A-24 

SCHEDULE A 



 

 

EXHIBIT B 
 

TERM SHEET 
 



 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

FORM OF PURCHASER’S CERTIFICATE 
 

This is to certify that ______________., or its assignee (the "Purchaser") has not 
required City of Miami Springs, Florida (the "Issuer") to deliver any offering document and 
has conducted its own investigation, to the extent it deems satisfactory or sufficient, into 
matters relating to business affairs or conditions (either financial or otherwise) of the 
Issuer in connection with the issuance by the Issuer of its $_____ Capital Improvement 
Refunding Revenue Note, Series 2015 (the "Note"), and no inference should be drawn 
that the Purchaser, in the acceptance of said Note, is relying on Bond Counsel or the City 
Attorney as to any such matters other than the legal opinions rendered by Bond Counsel 
and by the City Attorney.  Any capitalized undefined terms used herein not otherwise 
defined shall have the meaning set forth in Resolution No. ___ adopted by the City 
Council of the Issuer on February __, 2015 (the "Resolution"). 
 

We are aware that investment in the Note involves various risks, that the Note is 
not a general obligation of the Issuer or payable from ad valorem tax revenues, and that 
the payment of the Note is secured solely from the sources described in the Resolution 
(the "Pledged Revenues"). 
 

We have made such independent investigation of the Pledged Revenues as we, in 
the exercise of sound business judgment, consider to be appropriate under the 
circumstances.  In making our investment decision, we have relied upon the accuracy of 
information which has been provided to us. 
 

We have knowledge and experience in financial and business matters and are 
capable of evaluating the merits and risks of our investment in the Note and can bear the 
economic risk of our investment in the Note. 
 

We are not acting as a broker or other intermediary, and are purchasing the Note 
as an investment for our own account and not with a present view towards a resale or 
other distribution to the public.  We understand that the Note may not be transferred in a 
denomination less than the par amount outstanding at the time of transfer. 
 

We are a bank, trust company, savings institution, insurance company, dealer, 
investment company, pension or profit-sharing trust, or qualified institutional buyer as 
contemplated by Section 517.061(7), Florida Statutes.   
 

We are an "accredited investor" within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933, 
as amended, and Regulation D thereunder. 
 

DATED this ___ of _____________, 2015. 
 



 

 

       STI Institutional & Government, Inc.  
 
 
       By:       
       Name:       
      Title:       
 
 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT D 
 

DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 
 

Following a competitive selection process, the undersigned, as purchaser, 
proposes to purchase from the City of Miami Springs, Florida (the "Issuer") its $_____ 
Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Note, Series 2015 (“Note”).  Prior to the award 
of the note, the following information is hereby furnished to the Issuer: 
 

1. Set forth is an itemized list of the nature and estimated amounts of 
expenses to be incurred for services rendered to us (the "Purchaser") in connection with 
the issuance of the Note (such fees and expenses to be paid by the Issuer): 

 
$______ 

Legal Fees 
 

2. (a) No other fee, bonus or other compensation is estimated to be paid by 
the Purchaser in connection with the issuance of the Note to any person not regularly 
employed or retained by the Purchaser (including any "finder" as defined in Section 
218.386(1)(a), Florida Statutes), except as specifically enumerated as expenses to be 
incurred by the Purchaser, as set forth in paragraph (1) above. 

 
 (b) No person has entered into an understanding with the Purchaser, or 

to the knowledge of the Purchaser, with the Issuer, for any paid or promised 
compensation or valuable consideration, directly or indirectly, expressly or implied, to act 
solely as an intermediary between the Issuer and the Purchaser or to exercise or attempt 
to exercise any influence to effect any transaction in the purchase of the Note. 

 
3. The amount of the underwriting spread expected to be realized by the 

Purchaser is $____. 
 
4. The management fee to be charged by the Purchaser is $___. 
 
5. Truth-in-Bonding Statement: 
 
The Note is being issued primarily to construct capital improvements and refinance 

the Refunded Note.  Unless earlier prepaid, the Note is expected to be repaid by February 
1, 2030 at an interest rate of _______%, total interest paid over the life of the Note is 
estimated to be $________. 



 

 

 
The Note will be payable solely from Pledged Revenues in the manner and to the 

extent described in Resolution No. _____ dated February _, 2015 (the "Resolution").  
Issuance of the Note is estimated to result in an annual maximum of approximately 
$________ of revenues of the Issuer not being available to finance the services of the 
Issuer during the life of the Note.  This paragraph is provided pursuant to Section 
218.385, Florida Statutes. 

 
6. The name and address of the Purchaser is as follows: 

  
 
  
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Disclosure Letter on 
behalf of the Purchaser this ______ day of _________, 2015. 

 
      STI Institutional & Government, Inc.  
 
 
 
      By:       
      Name:    
     Title:    
 

 



 

 

EXHIBIT E 
 

ANTI-DILUTION CALCULATION 
 

  
 Anti Dilution/DSC Test Calculations 

Input Variables     
City of Miami Springs, FL 

  FY 20____ 
A)  Most Recent Audited Fiscal Year Legally Available Non Enterprise, Non Ad Valorem 
Revenues  
B)  Most Recent Audited Fiscal Year Ad Valorem Revenues  
C)  Most Recent Audited Fiscal Year Total Revenues  
D)  Prior Audited Fiscal Year Non Enterprise, Non Ad Valorem Revenues  
E) Average of 2 Most Recent Fiscal Years Non Ad Valorem Revenues  
F)  Cost of Essential Services (Most Recent Audited Fiscal Year)  
G)  Existing MADS on CBA  
H)  MADS on Proposed CBA  
I)  MADS on Existing and Proposed CBA Debt (G + H)  
J)  MADS on Debt Secured by Lien on Specific Non Advalorem Revs  
K)  MADS on All Debt Secured by Non Advalorem Revs (I + J)  
L) Required 2 Year Average Gross Coverage Test 1.50 
M)  Required Current Year Net Anti Dilution Test; or 1.50 
N) Required Global Coverage Test (optional in lieu of M) 1.50 
TEST 1: Gross 2 Yr Avg. Test:   E/K > 1.50 
    
Average of 2 Most Recent Fiscal Years Non Ad Valorem Revenues (E)=  
MADS on All Debt Secured by Non Advalorem Revenues (K)  
Gross 2 Yr Average Coverage (E/K)  
In Compliance?  
    
TEST 2: Net Current Year Anti Dilution Test (A-((A/C)xF) - J)/I > 1.50 
    
Most Recent Audited Fiscal Year Legally Available Non Enterprise, Non Ad Valorem 
Revenues (A)  
less ((A/C)xF)  
Equals: Revenues after Allocation for Essential Services  
Less:  MADS on Debt Secured by Lien on Specific Non Ad Valorem Revs (J)  
Revenues Available for CBA Debt Service  
Divided by:  I (MADS on Existing and Proposed CBA)  
Equals:  Anti Dilution Test or Pro Forma DSC (CBA coverage after debt service on 
senior lien debt):  
In Compliance?  
Global Coverage Test (Optional in Lieu of Test 2) 1.50 



 

 

Global Coverage  (Includes senior lien and CBA debt service)  
In Compliance?  

 
  





 
 

1 
Tennis Professional Consultant Agreement 

 
  TENNIS PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANT AGREEMENT 
 
 

THIS CONSULTANT AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st day of March, 2015, by 

and between the CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, a Florida municipal corporation, 

hereinafter referred to as “City”, and MANUEL FABIAN, hereinafter referred to as “Tennis 

Professional”;  

 

 W I T N E S S E T H : 

WHEREAS, for many years the City has attempted to maintain a cost effective and 

citizen responsive operation at the City Tennis and Racquetball Court Facility; and, 

WHEREAS,  in the last several years it has become apparent that the operations at 

the facility incur substantial monetary losses and are not as citizen “friendly” as required 

regardless of the plan or mode of operation of the facility; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council directed the City Administrative Staff to investigate 

alternative operational models which would substantially reduce or eliminate the annual 

monetary losses being incurred and provide a more responsive operation to the needs of 

the citizens using the facility; and, 

WHEREAS, as a result of the various investigations conducted by the City 

Administrative Staff, the opportunity has arisen to enter into a Consultant Agreement with a 

local Tennis Professional, Manuel Fabian, which the Staff believes will be mutually 

beneficial to both parties; and, 

 



 
 

2 
Tennis Professional Consultant Agreement 

WHEREAS, the City has the facilities available to provide an operational venue for 

the Tennis Professional, and the Tennis Professional has expressed a willingness to 

provide the programs, assistance and management required for the operation of a Tennis 

Program in the City; and, 

WHEREAS, the parties have also discussed the creation and expansion of many 

programs for speciality groups at the Tennis Facility as requested by the City Council; and, 

WHEREAS, the following Agreement is the culmination and memorialization of the 

various investigations conducted by the City Administration and the subsequent 

negotiations and discussions with the Tennis Professional Manuel Fabian. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the 

mutual sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS and 

MANUEL FABIAN, hereby agree as follows: 

 

 RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 
 

It is acknowledged and agreed between the parties hereto that MANUEL FABIAN 

will be granted exclusive control over the operation of the Miami Springs Tennis and 

Racquetball Court Facility.  In exchange and consideration for the foregoing, the Tennis 

Professional will provide supervisory, operational and instructional services at the aforesaid 

location, as are more fully set forth herein. 

In all matters relating to this Agreement, the Tennis Professional is to be considered 

an independent contractor and not an employee of the City. 



 
 

3 
Tennis Professional Consultant Agreement 

 DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CITY 

In accordance with the relationship of the parties created by this Agreement, the City 

will be required to perform the following duties and responsibilities: 

1. Continue to maintain the Tennis and Racquetball Courts. 

2. Continue to maintain the Tennis and Racquetball Facility, its infrastructure 

and buildings. 

3. Provide and pay for all required utility services to the Facility. 

4. Provide the Tennis Professional with full operational control and access to 

the Facility. 

5. Authorize and permit the sale of tennis equipment and supplies at the Facility 

by the Tennis Professional.  

6. Authorize and permit the Tennis Professional to provide personal instruction 

and training and all other tennis related activities at the Facility.  

7. Authorize and permit the Tennis Professional to control the scheduled uses 

of the facilities.  

 

 DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF TENNIS PROFESSIONAL 

In accordance with the relationship of the parties created by this Agreement, the 

Tennis Professional will be required to perform the following duties and responsibilities: 

 

1. Conduct professional instruction sessions for individuals and groups at the 

Facility. 



 
 

4 
Tennis Professional Consultant Agreement 

2. Insure that the Facility is open for use for a minimum of eight (8) hours a day, 

seven days a week. 

  3. Promote the use of the Facility through the Tennis Professional’s individual 

instruction services, group demonstrations and clinics, and any advertising or 

marketing materials or campaigns produced by the Tennis Professional. 

(However, such materials must be approved in advance by the City).   

4. Provide daily supervision and control of the Facility, including, but not limited 

to, opening and closing, proper use and maintenance of Facility, and the 

coordination of the daily activities of the Facility.  

5. Make reasonable appearances before the City Council to provide information 

regarding Tennis Facility operations, activities, programs and promotions. 

6. Establish and promote Tennis related activities, programs, tournaments, 

clinics and special summer sessions for juniors, seniors, women and other 

speciality groups at the Facility. 

7. Permit the usage of the Tennis Professional’s name, logo or other identifying 

designation in the advertising and marketing of the Tennis Facility provided 

by the City. (However, such materials must be approved in advance by the 

Tennis Professional.) 

8. Permit the usage of the Facility by the Miami Springs High School Tennis 

Team.  

9. Establish, operate and provide all necessary funding for a pro shop at the 

Facility which offers Tennis related equipment, clothing and other related 



 
 

5 
Tennis Professional Consultant Agreement 

products to the public and also provides equipment repair services. 

10. Perform all functions at the Tennis Facility in a proper and appropriate 

manner, never identifying yourself as a City employee, and being attired or 

uniformed in a manner that distinguishes yourself as an independent Tennis 

Professional and not a member of the management staff of the City. 

 

 EXCLUSIVITY OF SERVICES 

The parties mutually acknowledge and agree that the Tennis Professional is herein 

being granted the exclusive right to operate the Miami Springs Tennis and Racquetball 

Court Facility and to provide Tennis lessons, instruction and all other services previously 

set forth herein at the Facility.  The only exceptions to this grant of exclusivity are as 

follows: 

1. Tennis lessons or instruction provided by coaches or designated assistants 

of local schools utilizing the Facility for practice or tournament purposes. 

2. Special events that may be scheduled at the Facility with the approval of the 

Tennis Professional by the City or any City sponsored specific group or 

organization for a special courtesy fee. 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

6 
Tennis Professional Consultant Agreement 

 PAYMENT TO PARTIES 

Due to the fact that the Facility is a municipal tennis center, the local demographics, 

and the requirement to provide services and products to its taxpayers at “municipal facility” 

pricing, the City agrees to provide an annual subsidy to the Tennis Professional of Fifteen 

Thousand ($15,000) Dollars (in three payments of $5,000 each) to assist in the day-to-day 

operation of the Facility. 

 In addition, it is specifically understood and agreed that the Tennis Professional will 

retain any revenues derived from any usage of the Facility during the term of this 

Agreement.  Such revenues shall include, but not be limited to, membership fees, court 

rental payments, private lessons, tournaments, clinics, other programs/activities operated 

by the Tennis Professional, and all services provided by, and goods sold from, the pro 

shop maintained at the Facility. 

  

AUTHORITY FOR EMPLOYEES, ASSISTANTS AND VOLUNTEERS 

It is hereby mutually acknowledged and agreed that the Tennis Professional may 

hire employees or assistants, or utilize volunteer workers, to assist in the operation of the 

Tennis Facility.  However, all such parties shall be required to be properly screened in 

accordance with the City’s background investigation and fingerprinting policy and 

procedures and shall be the sole and exclusive responsibility of the Tennis Professional.  In 

addition, all background investigation and fingerprinting costs and all other payments or 

insurance coverages required for these parties shall remain the sole and exclusive 

responsibility of the Tennis Professional. 



 
 

7 
Tennis Professional Consultant Agreement 

 TERM OF AGREEMENT 

This Agreement shall commence on the 1st day of March, 2015 and terminate three 

(3) years later on the 28th day of February, 2018.  This Agreement may be extended or 

renewed only upon the mutual agreement of the parties hereto. 

 
 TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT WITHOUT CAUSE 
 

Either party hereto may terminate this Agreement, without cause, by giving the other 

party written notice thereof, by hand-delivery, or by certified mail, Return Receipt 

Requested, to be effective thirty (30) days from receipt of said written Notice of 

Termination. 

 CONFIDENTIALITY 

In the performance of this Agreement, Tennis Professional may be exposed to the 

confidential information of the City and other entities.  Tennis Professional shall not 

disclose to any party, other than the City Manager, Finance Director and those other City 

representatives authorized in writing by the City Manager, any such confidential information 

acquired during the performance of his services for the City.  Regardless of the term of this 

Agreement, Tennis Professional shall be bound by this obligation until such time as said 

confidential information shall become part of the public domain.  Information regarding all 

aspects of the City’s business and all information relating to the management services 

provided shall be presumed to be confidential, except as may be provided by law, and as 

same shall have been published or otherwise made freely available to the general public 

without restriction. 



 
 

8 
Tennis Professional Consultant Agreement 

 
 INSURANCE 

 
Tennis Professional shall be responsible to secure all insurance coverages 

required to carry out the activities provided herein, which shall include, but not be limited to, 

general operational liability, workers compensation and professional malpractice, which 

shall continue to remain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, and despite the fact that the Tennis Professional is an 

independent contractor, Tennis Professional shall be required to provide liability insurance 

covering himself, his employees, assistants, volunteers and clients, and the activities he 

conducts at the City Tennis and Racquetball Court Facility in the minimum amount of One 

Million ($1,000,000) Dollars.  In addition, it is required that the City of Miami Springs be 

named as an additional insured on the Tennis Professional’s liability and professional 

malpractice insurance policies. 

 
 HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 In addition to the foregoing, Tennis Professional shall hold the City, including its 

officials, employees, and representatives, harmless and indemnify it against all claims, 

demands, damages, actions, causes of actions, liability, costs, expenses, and attorney’s 

fees arising out of, or resulting from, injury to or death of persons, or damage to or loss of 

property, sustained on or about the Miami Springs Tennis and Racquetball Court Facility, 

arising from Tennis Professional’s services, acts, actions, omissions or failures to act or of 

any of its employees, agents, representatives, invitees, or guests.  Further, the protections 



 
 

9 
Tennis Professional Consultant Agreement 

provided by this provision shall also include any costs, expenses, or legal fees the City may 

incur in  establishing that Tennis Professional or his insurer are responsible to provide 

protection, coverage, and  representation to the City, its officials, employees, and 

representatives for any incident that may occur during the term hereof. 

 

 PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES 

Tennis Professional shall not use the premises for any unlawful purpose and shall 

comply with all laws and permitting requirements applicable now, or in the future, to the 

operation of the Miami Springs Tennis and Racquetball Court Facility. Tennis Professional 

shall not permit any offensive, noisy, or dangerous activity, nor any nuisance or other 

conduct in violation of the public policy of the City, county or state at the Facility.  

 

NON-DISCRIMINATORY PRACTICES 

In providing the services set forth herein, including those related to direct contact 

with the public, and those involving the hiring, treatment and advancement of employees, 

Tennis Professional shall not discriminate in any manner based upon race, color, creed, 

religion, ancestry, national origin, gender, age, physical/mental handicap or in any other 

manner.  In addition, Tennis Professional shall insure the fair and equal use and access to 

the Facility. 

 

  

 



 
 

10 
Tennis Professional Consultant Agreement 

LICENSED OR REGISTERED PERSONNEL 

All services to be rendered by Tennis Professional under this Agreement, which are 

required by law to be performed by or under the direction of a duly licensed or registered 

professional, shall be rendered in compliance with such requirements. 

 

ASSIGNMENT 

Tennis Professional shall not assign, sublet or transfer any portion of its duties, 

obligations, or responsibilities under this Agreement without the advance written approval 

of the City.  It is specifically understood and agreed that the City’s decision to either permit 

or deny any such assignment, subletting or transfer shall be within its sole and exclusive 

discretion and that any such decision by the City shall be presumed to be reasonable.  

 

ATTORNEY’S FEES 

 The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that should it become necessary for 

either party to this Agreement to bring suit to enforce any provisions hereof, or for damages 

on account of any breach of this Agreement, the prevailing party on any issue  in any such 

litigation, and any appeals therefrom, shall be entitled to recover from the other party, in 

addition to any damages or other relief granted as a result of such litigation, all costs and 

expenses of such litigation and a reasonable attorney’s fee as may be awarded by the 

court. 

 

 



 
 

11 
Tennis Professional Consultant Agreement 

NOTICES TO PARTIES 

All notices required or desired to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing 

and delivered in person or transmitted by Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested, 

postage prepaid, addressed to the party to be noticed, and shall be deemed to have been 

delivered three (3) days after deposit in a post office or letter box in the above manner. 

 

NOTICES TO BE GIVEN TO CITY SHALL BE ADDRESSED AS FOLLOWS: 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
Attention:  Ronald K. Gorland, City Manager 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166 

 
 

 
NOTICES TO BE GIVEN TO TENNIS PROFESSIONAL SHALL 

  BE ADDRESSED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 
MATCH POINT ENTERPRISES, LLC, 
A Florida Limited Liability Company 
561 Wren Avenue 
Miami Springs, FL 33166 

 
 
 CAPTIONS 
 

All captions in this Agreement are included for convenience only and are not to be 

taken into consideration in any construction or interpretation of this Agreement or any of its 

provisions. 

TIME 

Time is of the essence as to each term of this Agreement. 

 



 
 

12 
Tennis Professional Consultant Agreement 

GOVERNING LAW 

This Agreement and the rights and liabilities of the parties to this Agreement shall be 

governed by the laws of the State of Florida.  If any provision of this Agreement is 

invalidated by judicial decision or statutory enactment, the invalidity of any such provision 

will not affect the validity of any other provision of this Agreement. 

 
 

ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement, together with any Exhibits hereto, constitute the entire Agreement 

between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof.  This Agreement is the final 

expression of agreement between the parties hereto.  Neither party shall be entitled to rely 

upon any conflicting oral representations, assurances, claims or disclaimers, made either 

prior to, or simultaneous with, the execution of the Agreement. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Tennis Professional have set their hands 

and seals on the day and year first above written to this Agreement and three counterparts, 

each of which shall constitute an original. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

13 
Tennis Professional Consultant Agreement 

WITNESSES:     TENNIS PROFESSIONAL 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________  _______________________________ 
 
Print Name:___________________  MANUEL FABIAN 
 
 
_____________________________    
 
Print Name:___________________ 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE 
 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ , day of 
_____________ , 2015, by MANUEL FABIAN.  He is personally known to me or has 
produced_____________________________________________ (type of identification) 
as identification and did (did not) take an oath. 

 
 
 
 

________________________ 
Notary Public, State of Florida 

 
 
 

________________________ 
Print, Type or Stamp Name of 
Notary Public 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

14 
Tennis Professional Consultant Agreement 

WITNESSES: 
(As to both signatories)   CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 

a Florida Municipal Corporation 
 
 
 
___________________________ BY:_______________________________ 
 
Print Name:_________________  RONALD K. GORLAND, City Manager  
 
 
 
 
___________________________ ATTEST:___________________________ 
 
Print Name:___________________ ERIKA GONZALEZ-SANATAMARIA, City 
Clerk 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE 
 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ________ day of 
_________________ , 2015, by Ronald K. Gorland, City Manager, and Erika Gonzalez-
Santamaria, City Clerk of the City of Miami Springs, a Florida Municipal Corporation.  They 
are personally known to me or have produced 
_______________________________________ (type of identification) as identification 
and did (did not) take an oath. 
 
 
 
 

________________________ 
Notary Public, State of Florida 

 
________________________ 
Print, Type of Stamp Name of 
Notary Public 

 
 
 
O:\3\Contracts\Tennis Professional Consultant Agreement - Manuel Fabian - 2012.doc 
City Clerk’s Office – 1/5/2012 9:59:48 AM 
 
 





 
Facility Agreement – Optimist Club 

1 

FACILITY AGREEMENT 
 
 

THIS AGREEMENT  is entered into this ____ day of _____________, 2015 by 
and between the CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, a Florida Municipal Corporation, 
hereinafter referred to as "City", and Miami Springs VG Optimist Club, Inc., a Florida 
Corporation, hereinafter referred to as “Club”; 

 
W I T N E S S E T H: 

 
WHEREAS, Club has approached the City to solicit authorization to utilize a 

portion of the Miami Springs Golf Course property to construct, maintain, and operate 
an archery range; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Recreation Department of the City is desirous of providing the 

widest variety of recreational and educational activities for citizens on a continuing 
basis; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Miami Springs has reviewed and 
discussed the proposal for the Club’s archery range program and has determined that, 
subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, it is in the best interests of the 
City and its citizens to authorize the use of a portion of the Miami Springs Golf Course 
property for the purposes provided: 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, 

the mutual sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as 
follows: 

 
USE OF PREMISES 

 
The City of Miami Springs hereby grants to the Club the right to use that portion 

of the Miami Springs Golf Course depicted on the sketch attached hereto as Exhibit No. 
1 for the operation of an archery range, upon the terms and conditions set forth herein.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City reserves the right to utilize the areas being 
provided to the Club upon reasonable advance notice for City related or sponsored 
activities. 

PAYMENTS FOR USAGE 
 
Club agrees to pay the City an annual fee for the use of the subject property in 

the amount of five hundred ($500.00) dollars, which is due, in advance, at the beginning 
of the annual term. 

MAINTENANCE OF PREMISES 
 
Club agrees to clean and maintain the area used for its activities so that it is 

returned to the City in the same condition as received. In the event that Club does not 
comply with this clean up and maintenance provision, Club agrees to reimburse the City 
for the actual costs incurred in cleaning the area following its usage. 

 
 

 
 
 



 
Facility Agreement – Optimist Club 

2 

ACCEPTANCE OF AGREEMENT 
 
Club hereby accepts this agreement granted by the City for the use of a portion 

of the Miami Springs Golf Course property for the operation of an archery range 
constructed, maintained, and operated by the Club. 

 
TERM OF AGREEMENT 

 
This Agreement shall be for a period of one (1) year beginning on February 1, 

2015 and continue through January 31, 2016. 
 

RENEWAL OF AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement may be renewed upon the mutual consent and agreement of the 

parties hereto.      
 

TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 
           
 This Agreement may be terminated by either party hereto, without cause, by 
providing the other party written notice thereof by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, or by hand delivery, to be effective thirty (30) days from receipt of said 
written notice. 
 

INSURANCE 
  
 Club shall, at all times during the term hereof, maintain insurance coverage in 
the amount of $1,000,000, (One million dollars) which shall also name the City as an 
additional insured under the policy.  All such insurance, including renewals, shall be 
subject to the approval of the City for adequacy of protection and evidence of such 
coverage shall be furnished to the City on Certificates of Insurance indicating such 
insurance to be in force and effect and providing that it will not be cancelled during the 
performance of the services under this Agreement without thirty (30) calendar days prior 
written notice to the City.   Completed Certificates of Insurance shall be filed with the 
City prior to the performance of services hereunder, provided, however, that Club shall, 
at any time, upon request, file duplicate copies of the policies of such insurance with the 
City. 
 

HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION 
 
 In addition to the aforementioned required insurance coverage to be provided to 
the City, Club shall hold the City, including its officials, employees and representatives, 
harmless and indemnify it against all claims, demands, damages, actions, causes of 
actions, liability, costs, expenses, and attorney's fees arising out of, or resulting from, 
injury to or death of persons, or damage to or loss of property, sustained on or about the 
licensed premises, arising from the services, acts, actions, omissions or failures to act 
of Club or of any of its employees, agents, representatives, invitees, or guests.  
Additionally, the protections provided by this provision shall also include any costs, 
expenses, or legal fees the City may incur in establishing that Club or its insurer are 
responsible to provide protection, coverage, and representation to the City, its officials, 
employees, and representatives for any incident that may occur during the term hereof. 

 



 
Facility Agreement – Optimist Club 

3 

 
 

PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES 
 
Club shall not use the premises for any inappropriate or unlawful purpose and 

shall comply with all State, County and City laws, statutes, ordinances, policies, rules 
and regulations applicable now, or in the future, to the operation of Club and the 
premises. Club shall not permit any offensive, or dangerous activity, nor any nuisance 
or other conduct in violation of the public policy of the City, county or state on the 
premises. 

 
COMPLIANCE WITH CITY SAFETY RULES, REGULATIONS AND PROCEDURES 

  
 Club agrees to abide by all City safety rules, regulations and procedures during 
its use of the subject Golf Course property.  In addition, all personnel in any manner 
involved with the operation and activities of Club must successfully comply with the 
City’s background investigation and fingerprinting policy and procedures.   

 
NONDISCRIMINATION 

 
Club represents and warrants to the City that it does not and will not engage in 

discriminatory practices and that there shall be no discrimination in connection with the 
performance of this Agreement on account of race, color, sex, religion, age, handicap, 
marital status or national origin. Club further covenants that no otherwise qualified 
individual shall, solely by reason of his/her race, color, sex, religion, age, handicap, 
marital status or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied services, or 
be subject to discrimination under any provision of this Agreement. 

 
ASSIGNMENT 

 
This Agreement shall not be assigned, in whole or in part, without the prior 

written consent of the City Manager, which may be withheld or conditioned, in the City 
Manager's sole and exclusive discretion. 

 
ATTORNEY FEES AND COSTS 

 
If either party to this Agreement initiates litigation to enforce any provisions 

hereof or for damages on account of any breach of this Agreement, the prevailing party 
in any such litigation, and any appeals there from, shall be entitled to recover from the 
other party, in addition to any damages or other relief granted as a result of such 
litigation, all costs and expenses of such litigation and reasonable attorney's fee as fixed 
by the court. 

 
NOTICES 

 
All notices or other communications required under this agreement shall be in 

writing and shall be given by hand-delivery or by registered or certified U.S. mail, return 
receipt requested, addressed to the other party at the following address or to such other 
address as a party may designated for notice: 

 
 



 
Facility Agreement – Optimist Club 

4 

 
NOTICES TO BE GIVEN TO CITY SHALL BE ADDRESSED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
Attention:  Ronald K. Gorland, City Manager 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL  33166 

    
 

NOTICES TO BE GIVEN TO CLUB SHALL BE ADDRESSED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Miami Springs VG Optimist Club, Inc. 

    1101 Wren Avenue 
    Miami Springs, Florida 33166 

 
 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 
A.    That this Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with 

the laws of the State of Florida. 
 
B.  That title and paragraph headings contained herein are for convenient 

reference and are not a part of this Agreement. 
 
C.  That should any provision, paragraph, sentence, word or phrase contained in 

this Agreement be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal 
or otherwise unenforceable under the laws of the State of Florida, such provision, 
paragraph, sentence, word or phrase shall be deemed modified to the extent 
necessary in order to conform with such law, or if not modifiable, then same shall be 
deemed severable, and in either event, the remaining terms and provisions of this 
Agreement shall remain unmodified and in full force and effect or limitation of its use. 

 
D.  That this Agreement constitutes the sole and entire understanding between 

the parties hereto. No modification or amendment hereto shall be valid unless in writing 
and executed by properly authorized representatives of the parties hereto. 

 
E.  That this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto, their heirs, 

executors, legal representatives, successors or assigns. 
 
F.  That Club has not been procured and is being engaged to provide services 

to the City as an Independent Contractor, and not as an agent or employee of the City. 
Accordingly, Club shall not attain, nor be entitled to, any rights or benefits under the 
Civil Service or Pensions Ordinances of the City, nor any rights generally afforded civil 
services or non-civil service employees. Club further understands that Florida Worker's 
Compensation benefits available to employees of the City are not available to it, and it 
agrees to provide workers' compensation insurance for any employee or agent 
rendering services.  
 
 G.  Parking for all participants shall be in the existing Golf Course parking lots, 
except that the Range Master may park on-site. 
 
 H.  Club is solely responsible for all range facilities and equipment and the 
authorized use of the facilities by any participant. 
 



 
Facility Agreement – Optimist Club 

5 

  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Club and the City have set their hands and seals on 

the day and year first above written. 
 
    Miami Springs VG Optimist Club, Inc., 
    a Florida Corporation 
WITNESSES:      

 
_________________________ By:____________________________ 
 
Print Name:_________________ Karl Bithorn, President 
 
_________________________ 
 
Print Name:_________________ 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE 

 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ day of __________, 

2015, by Karl Bithorn, President of Miami Springs VG Optimist Club, Inc. He is personally 
known to me or has produced _____________________________________ as identification, 
and did take an oath. 
 
 

________________________ 
Notary Public, State of Florida 

COMMISSION: 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Facility Agreement – Optimist Club 

6 

 
WITNESSES: 
 
 _____________________________  CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
  A Florida Municipal Corporation 
 
 Print Name:___________________  By:__________________________ 

Ronald K. Gorland  
     City Manager 
 ____________________________ 
 
 Print Name:___________________  ATTEST:______________________ 
           Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, 

    City Clerk 
 STATE OF FLORIDA 
 COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ day of _______, 2013, 
by RONALD K. GORLAND, City Manager and ERIKA GONZALEZ-SANTAMARIA, City Clerk of 
the City of Miami Springs, Florida. They are personally known to me or have produced 
_________________________ as identification, and did take an oath. 
 
 

________________________ 
Notary Public, State of Florida 

COMMISSION: 
 
 
 
O:\City Clerk Department\Contracts\Facility Agreement - Optimist Club Archery Range- 2015.doc 
 
 
 







































































 
 

 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166-5259 
Phone: 305.805.5006 
Fax: 305.805.5028 

 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Garcia and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM: Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC, City Clerk  
 
VIA:  Elora R. Sakal, Assistant City Clerk 
 
DATE:  January 8, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: Board of Parks and Parkways Recommendation 
 
 
************************************************************************************************************* 
 
At their last meeting on January 7, 2015, the Board of Parks and Parkways recommended the 
following to Council: 
 
a) Criteria for Signage Wall 
 

Board member Priess made a recommendation that they are in support of the design 
and idea created by Public Works Director Tom Nash for the signage wall. Board 
member Johnston seconded the motion which was carried unanimously on voice vote. 
 
Board member Priess made a recommendation to Council that Public Works Director 
Nash creates a signage design to present to those churches and organizations that 
currently have signage on Curtiss Parkway and Morningside Drive for their input. Board 
member Johnston seconded the motion which was carried unanimously on voice vote. 

 
b) Yard of the Month - February 
 

 By consensus, the Board agreed to nominate 27 Hunting Lodge Drive as the February, 
2015 yard of the month. 

 
c) Yard of the Month - March 
 

By consensus, the Board agreed to nominate 651 Falcon Avenue as the March, 2015 
yard of the month. 

 
d) Yard of the Month - April  
 

By consensus, the Board agreed to nominate 130 Flagler Drive as the April, 2015 yard 
of the month. 

 
 
 
cc: City Manager  
 Assistant City Manager/Finance Director  
 City Attorney  
























	Agenda Summary - February 9, 2015
	p. 2
	p. 3

	3B Officer of the Month Award - Robbins 
	3C Yard of the Month Award - Modesitt 
	3D Presentation of the CAFR 
	5A Minutes - January 21, 2015 
	5B Minutes - January 26, 2015 
	6A Board of Adjustment Minutes - February 2, 2015 
	8A Approval of City Attorney's January Invoice 
	8B Approval of Purchase Order for Sullivan Electric for pump stations 
	8C(1)(2)(3) Approval of Auto Radar Equipment
	8D Approval to Purchase Ford Police Vehicle
	8E Approval of Leasing Police Motorcycles from Peterson's
	9A Advisory Board Appointment 
	9B Golf Cart Study
	10A Update on Fund Balance Designation
	10B Approval of PO to Trane for AC Maintenance
	10C Reso - Pool Financing
	10D Approval of Extension on Match Point Agreement
	10E Approval of Extension on MS/VG Optimist Archery Club Agreement
	10F Approval of Extension on Curtiss Mansion Agreement
	10G Yard of the Month Approvals for February March and April
	10H Approval of Police Staffing
	10I Relay for Life 



